

# Wednesday, October 9, 2024 6:00 p.m.

Council Chambers, City Hall 333 Broadalbin Street SW

Watch on YouTube: <a href="https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofalbany">https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofalbany</a>

Please help us get Albany's work done.

Be respectful and refer to the rules of conduct posted by the main door to the Chambers and on the website.

1.	Call to order and pledge of allegiance	
2.	Roll call	
3.	Special presentations  a. Community Health Centers of Benton and Linn Counties – Christine Mosl  b. Oregon Community Foundation – Jackie Roth	baugh and Lacey Mollel
4.	Business from the public	
5.	First reading of ordinances  a. Renewing franchise agreements – Jeanna Yeager [Pages 3-33]  1) Lightspeed Networks, Inc, dba LS Networks  2) Astound Broadband, LLC	ORD NO p. 4 ORD NO p. 19
6.	Award of contract  a. Special procurement for police vehicle in-car cameras – Marcia Harnden	[Pages 34-37] RES NO p. 36
7.	<ul> <li>Adoption of consent agenda</li> <li>a. Appointments [Pages 38-42] <ol> <li>Accepting Karen Messer's resignation from the Library Board</li> <li>Accepting Pat Kidd's resignation from the Public Safety Commission</li> <li>Appointing Scott Kniefel to the Library Board</li> </ol> </li> <li>b. Approval of minutes [Pages 43-44] <ol> <li>September 23, 2024, city council work session</li> </ol> </li> </ul>	
	MOTION:	
8	Business from the council	

9. City manager report

- 10. Next meeting dates Monday, October 21, 2024; 4:00 p.m. work session Wednesday, October 23, 2024; 6:00 p.m. meeting
- 11. Adjournment

This meeting is accessible to the public via video connection. The location for in-person attendance is accessible to people with disabilities. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, please notify city staff at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting at: <a href="mailto:cityclerk@albanyoregon.gov">cityclerk@albanyoregon.gov</a>

Testimony provided at the meeting is part of the public record. Meetings are recorded, capturing both inperson and virtual participation, and are posted on the City website.



TO:

Albany City Council

VIA:

Peter Troedsson, City Manager

FROM:

Jeanna Yeager, Finance Director

DATE:

September 30, 2024, for the October 9, 2024, City Council

**SUBJECT:** Renew Telecommunications System Franchises with Lightspeed Networks, Inc, dba LS Networks; and Astound Broadband, LLC.

Relates to Strategic Plan theme: Effective Government

## **Action Requested:**

Repeal ordinances 5652, 5839, and 5840, and adopt new ordinances to amend the nonexclusive telecommunications system franchises to LS Networks and to Astound Broadband, LLC for the ongoing operation of a telecommunications system, and fixing terms, conditions, and compensation of such franchise.

#### **Discussion:**

LS Networks and Astound have successfully maintained franchise relationships with the City and are seeking to renew their agreements. The current agreements are codified in Albany Municipal Code 3.70 and 3.80, respectively.

The City has updated its telecommunication franchise agreements, addressing various issues related to utility services and their impact on public rights-of-way. Each agreement spans 15 pages and includes 35 sections, with Sections 3.80.180 and 3.70.180 focusing on financial compensation to the City. This payment is considered "rent" for the use of public rights-of-way, rather than a tax. It serves as compensation for the benefits utilities gain from access to public spaces and helps to offset any inconvenience to the public caused by the installation, maintenance, or removal of utility facilities and equipment.

The comprehensive scope of these ordinances extends far beyond revenue matters. The subject headings clarify the contractual nature of the relationship and outline the parties' agreements on non-financial matters. These include, but are not limited to Construction, Excavation, and Relocation, Restoration of Rights-of-Way, Right-of-Way Vacation, Hazardous Substances, and Insurance and Bonding.

## **Budget Impact:**

These are renewals and will have no additional impact on the budget.

Attachments: Ordinances

cityofalbany.net

## ORDINANCE NO.



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3.70 OF THE ALBANY MUNICIPAL CODE (AMC) AND RENEWING A NON-EXCLUSIVE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM FRANCHISE TO LIGHTSPEED NETWORKS, INC. FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A TELECOMMUNICATON SYSTEM; AND FIXING TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND COMPENSATION OF SUCH FRANCHISE; AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 5652 AND ORDINANCE NO. 5839

WHEREAS, pursuant to federal law and state statutes the City is authorized to grant non-exclusive franchises to occupy the City Rights-of-Way or other public property in order to construct, operate, use, and maintain telecommunications service, gas service, electricity, and other public utilities, within the municipal boundaries of the city of Albany; and

WHEREAS, the City of Albany has determined that the financial, legal, and technical ability of Lightspeed Networks, Inc. dba LS Networks is reasonably sufficient to continue to provide services, facilities, and equipment necessary to meet the future telecommunication needs of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the people of the City of Albany do ordain as follows.

Section 1. AMC Chapter 3.70.010 through 3.70.350 is established to read as follows:

#### 3.70.010 Franchise granted.

The City of Albany, hereinafter referred to as "City", hereby grants to Lightspeed Networks, Inc dba LS Networks, a Corporation authorized to conduct business in Oregon, hereinafter referred to as "Franchisee", the non-exclusive right and privilege to occupy the City's Rights-of-Way for the purpose of construction, use, operation, and maintenance of a Telecommunications System. Franchisee shall use its Telecommunications System solely to provide Telecommunications Services (as defined in ORS 759.005(8)), private telecommunication network (as defined in ORS 759.005(4)) service, and internet access service (as defined in ORS 305. 822(1)(b)) within the City and to place, erect, lay, maintain, and operate in, upon, over and under streets, alleys, avenues, thoroughfares and public highways, places and grounds within the City (collectively, "Public Ways"), poles, wires, conduits, cabinets, appurtenances, and other appliances and conductors (collectively, "Facilities") for all communication purposes.

This Agreement and the grant of authority conferred herein are not exclusive. The City reserves the right to grant the authority to others to use the Franchise Area during the term of this Agreement. The Franchisee shall respect the rights and property of the City and other authorized users of the Rights-of-Way. This Agreement does not confer on Franchisee any right, title, or interest in any Right-of-Way beyond that expressly conferred herein. This Agreement does not confer any right or privilege to use or occupy any other property of the City or any other entity.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the City from constructing sewers; from grading, paving, repairing, or altering any Right-of-Way, or from constructing, installing, repairing, or removing water mains or any other public work or improvement. If any of the Franchisee's Telecommunications System interferes with the work described in this subsection, the Franchisee's Telecommunications System shall be removed or replaced as set forth in AMC 3.70.040 of this Agreement.

## 3.70.020 Rules of construction; Definitions.

Throughout this Agreement, captions are intended solely to facilitate reading and reference and shall not affect the meaning and interpretation of this Agreement.

When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word "shall" will always mean mandatory and not merely directory.

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms, phrases, and their derivations shall have the meanings given below unless the context indicates otherwise.

- 1. "City" means the City of Albany, Oregon and the area within its boundaries as extended in the future.
- 2. "Conduit" is an electrical raceway for the enclosure of electrical conductors and may consist of rigid conduit of electrical metallic tubing or plastic tubing.
- 3. "Council" means the legislative body of the City.
- 4. "Customer," "user" or "subscriber" shall mean any person or entity lawfully receiving telecommunications service.
- 5. "Facility" means any tangible component of the Franchisee's Telecommunications System including, but not limited to, fiber, wires, cables, pipes, mains, ducts, conduits, vaults, pedestals, poles, antennas, power boxes, cabinets, and electronic equipment.
- 6. "Franchise Administrator" means the City Manager or designee of the City of Albany.
- 7. "Franchisee" means Lightspeed Networks, Inc dba LS Networks, its successors, legal representatives, or assigns.
- 8. "Gross Revenues" means any and all revenue in whatever form, grant, subsidy, exchange, or otherwise directly or indirectly received by the Franchisee for Telecommunications Service provided to subscribers within the City of Albany subject to all applicable limitations imposed by federal and/or state law.
- 9. "Local" means Linn County, Oregon or Benton County, Oregon.
- 10. "May" is permissive.
- 11. "Minimum Annual Franchise Fee" means the minimum amount paid to the City of Albany under this Agreement.
- 12. "Person" includes an individual, corporation, association, firm, partnership, and joint stock company.
- 13. "Private Telecommunications Network" means a system for the provision of telecommunications service or any portion of telecommunications service, including the construction, maintenance, or operation of the system, by a person for the exclusive use of that person and not for resale, directly or indirectly.
- 14. "Public Place" includes any City-owned park, place, facility, or grounds within the City that is open to the public but does not include a street or bridge.
- 15. "Radio Common Carrier" means any corporation, company, association, joint stock association, partnership and person, their lessees, trustees or receivers and any town making available facilities to provide radio communications service, radio paging or cellular communications service for hire.
- 16. "Rights-of-Way" means the surface of, and the space above and below, any street, road, alley, highway, sidewalk, utility easement, public square, public park, or other public place owned or otherwise held by the City.
- 17. "Service Area" means the legal boundaries of the City and including any areas annexed during the term of the franchise.
- 18. "Street" includes the surface, the air space above the surface, and the area below the surface of any public street, alley, avenue, road, boulevard, thoroughfare, or public highway, other public right-of-way, including public utility easements, but does not include a bridge or public place.
- 19. "Shall" is mandatory.

- 20. "Technical Facilities" or "Facilities" shall mean all real property, equipment, and fixtures used by Franchisee in the distribution of its services through its system and includes, but is not limited to, poles, conduit, cables, wires, microwave transmitters, antennae, amplifiers, etc.
- 21. "Telecommunications Service" (as defined in ORS 759.05(8)) and means any service provided for a fee to the public, or to such class of users as to be effectively available to the public without regard to the facilities used to provide the telecommunications; and for the purpose of voice, video or data transmission, including, but not limited to, local exchange service, access service, extended area service, call origination, interconnection, switching, transport, call termination and/or any other telecommunications service identified and authorized by the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") or the Oregon Public Utility Commission. Telecommunications Service does not include any of the following: cable service as defined by 47 U.S.C. § 522; open video system service as defined in 47 C.F.R. § 76 (2009); private communications system services provided without using the public rights-of-way; over-the-air radio or television broadcasting to the public-at-large from facilities licensed by the FCC or any successor thereto; direct-to-home satellite service within the meaning of Section 602 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996; or commercial mobile radio service as defined by 47 C.F.R. § 20.3 (2009).
- 22. "Telecommunications System" means all Facilities owned, leased, rented, maintained, or used by Franchisee for the purpose of providing Telecommunications Service and located in, under and/or above Rights-of-Way.

#### 3.70.030 Effective date; Term.

The effective date of this Agreement shall be the first day of the full calendar month following the date the ordinance takes effect (the "Effective Date").

This Agreement, and all rights and obligations pertaining hereto, shall, subject to any applicable statutory or regulatory limitations on the maximum term allowed for public contracts, continue in full force and effect for an <u>initial term of five (5) years</u>, commencing on the Effective Date. Unless sooner terminated by either Party as set forth in subsection 28.1 below, at the end of the initial five (5) year term, this Agreement shall be reviewed by both Parties and must be in compliance with Oregon Revised Statute ("ORS") 221.460(2020).

#### 3.70.040 Construction; Excavation; and Relocation.

Franchisee shall maintain maps and data pertaining to all of its Facilities located in the City on file at an office in the State of Oregon. The City shall be allowed to inspect all such maps and data pertaining to its Facilities located in the City Rights-of-Way at any time during regular business hours upon not less than five (5) business days' prior notice. Upon request of the City and without charge, Franchisee shall provide current maps and data to the City showing the location of all Franchisee's Facilities within the City. Upon completion of any and all of its Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way, Franchisee shall provide a map or maps consistent with this Section to the City, showing the location as built of its installed Telecommunication System in the Rights-of-Way. Such as-built maps shall be in a form reasonably acceptable to the City Engineer and shall define specific locations of Facilities. City will not sell or transmit Franchisee maps or data to third parties unless permitted by Franchisee or required by law. The City will make available to Franchisee at no cost any relevant City-prepared maps or data.

Subject to applicable rules and regulations of the City, Franchisee may perform all excavations and other work necessary to construct, operate and maintain its Telecommunications System. All construction and maintenance of any and all Facilities within Rights-of-Way shall, regardless of who performs the excavation, installation and/or construction, are and shall remain the responsibility of the Franchisee. Franchisee shall apply for and obtain all permits necessary for excavation, installation and/or construction of any Facilities located in the Rights-of-Way and shall pay all applicable fees due for City permits. Franchisee must also give such notice as required by law to other franchisees, licensees, or permittees of the City, and/or other units of government owning or maintaining facilities which may be affected by the proposed work.

Prior to beginning any excavation, installation, or construction work, Franchisee shall provide the City with an initial schedule and the estimated total cost of such work. When Franchisee's work under its permit is completed, Franchisee shall provide the City with the total amount of Right-of-Way, measured linearly, occupied by Franchisee's Telecommunications System, and with a map showing the location of its installed Telecommunications System, as built. Such "as-built" maps shall be in a form reasonably acceptable to the City Engineer.

All work by Franchisee in the Rights-of-Way shall be properly safeguarded for the prevention of accidents. All of Franchisee's work under AMC 3.70.130 and 3.70.150 of this Agreement shall be done in strict compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of the City and the State of Oregon.

Within thirty (30) days of any change in location of Franchisee's Telecommunications System, Franchisee shall provide a map to the City Engineer, showing the location of Franchisee's Telecommunications System on whatever standard scale the City adopts for general use. The Franchisee shall also provide such maps in an electronic format acceptable to both the City and Franchisee.

In the event that emergency repairs to its Telecommunications System are necessary, Franchisee shall immediately notify the City of the need for such repairs. Franchisee may immediately initiate such emergency repairs and shall apply for appropriate permits the next business day following discovery of the emergency. Franchisee shall comply with all City ordinances and regulations relating to any excavations or construction undertaken during emergency repair work, including the payment of permits or license fees. If emergency work has been done in a manner or location unacceptable to the City, the City shall notify the Franchisee in writing. The Franchisee shall make all appropriate modifications and relocation within sixty (60) days of such written notice.

Franchisee shall comply with ORS 757.542 through ORS 757.562(2020) and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder in making excavations.

The City shall have the right to require Franchisee to change the location of any of its Facilities located within the Rights-of-Way when public convenience and necessity requires such change, and the expense thereof shall be paid solely by Franchisee. However, if the relocation request is initiated by a third party, the Franchisee shall have the right to charge the cost of the relocation to that third party. Should Franchisee fail to remove or relocate any such Facilities by the date established by the City, which, except in the event of a public emergency, shall not be sooner than 120 days after City's written notice to remove/relocate, the City may cause or effect such removal or relocation, and the expense thereof shall be paid by Franchisee, including all direct, indirect or consequential costs and expenses incurred by the City due to Franchisee's delay. If the City requires Franchisee to relocate any of its Facilities located within the Rights-of-Way, the City shall make a reasonable effort to provide Franchisee with an alternate location for such Facilities.

As permitted by applicable law, administrative rule, or regulation, the City may require Franchisee to remove and replace any overhead Facilities with underground Facilities at the same or different locations subject to Franchisee's engineering and safety standards. The expense of such a conversion shall be paid by Franchisee, and Franchisee may recover its costs from its customers in accordance with state laws and administrative rules or regulations. Nothing in this subsection prevents the City and Franchisee from agreeing to a different form of cost recovery consistent with applicable statutes and administrative rules or regulations on a case-by-case basis.

Franchisee's Telecommunications System shall be constructed and maintained in such manner as not to interfere with sewers, water pipes, or any other property of the City, or with any other pipes, wires, conduits, or other facilities that may have been laid in the Rights-of-Way by the City or pursuant to the City's authority.

Upon Franchisee's acquisition of any Facilities located in the Rights-of-Way, or upon any addition or annexation to the City of any area in which Franchisee owns or controls any Facilities in the Rights-of-Way, the Franchisee shall submit to the City a written statement describing all Facilities involved, along with any documentation evidencing such acquisition and specifying the location of all such Facilities. Such Facilities shall immediately be subject to the terms of this Agreement upon acquisition or control by Franchisee.

The City may require Franchisee to temporarily remove and/or relocate Facilities located in any Right-of-Way by giving not less than thirty (30) days' advance written notice to Franchisee. Prior to such removal and/or relocation, the City agrees to provide a suitable substitute location for such relocated Facilities to maintain service. The City will assist in acquiring any needed easements if required square footage is not available in the Rights-Of-Way. The cost of removal and relocation of its Facilities to accommodate public projects shall be paid by Franchisee; however, when such removal and relocation are to be temporary and both the initial and the subsequent relocation are for public projects and not at the request of or to accommodate a private party, initial relocation costs shall be paid by Franchisee and the costs of subsequent relocations occurring less than two years after the initial relocation shall be paid by the City.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed in any way to prevent the City from excavating, grading, paving, planking, repairing, widening, altering, or doing any work in any Rights-Of-Way consistent with National Electric Safety Code. The City shall coordinate any such work with Franchisee to avoid, to the extent reasonably foreseeable, any obstruction, injury, or restriction on the use of any of Franchisee's Facilities. Nothing in this Section relieves Franchisee from its obligations set forth herein.

## 3.70.050 Street repair - Expense responsibility.

Whenever Franchisee shall disturb any of the streets for the purpose aforesaid, it or they shall restore the same to good order and condition in accordance with the City of Albany Standard Construction Specifications and the permit issued for the work as soon as practicable without unnecessary delay, and failing to do so, the City shall have the right to fix a reasonable time within which such repairs and restoration of streets shall be completed, and upon failure of such repairs being made by said company, its successors and assigns, the City shall cause such repairs to be made at the expense of Franchisee.

#### 3.70.060 Restoration of rights-of-ways.

Whenever Franchisee disturbs the surface of any Right-of-Way for any purpose, Franchisee shall promptly restore the Right-of-Way to as good or better condition than it had been prior to such disturbance.

All restoration of Rights-of-Way surfaces shall be subject to the approval of the City Engineer who may issue an order requiring correction of the restoration work. If the correction order is not complied with within thirty (30) days or any other such later time as may be specified in the order, the City may restore the surface of the Rights-of-Way, in which case Franchisee shall pay all reasonable costs of the restoration work to the City, including the resurfacing, inspection, supervision, and administrative costs of the resurfacing. If the City restores the surface of any Rights-of-way under this subsection, Franchisee shall also pay for the cost of issuing the correction order. If the work by Franchisee creates a public safety hazard as determined by the City Engineer, Franchisee may be required to repair or restore such Right-of-Way within twenty-four (24) hours of such determination or within such time as otherwise agreed upon by the City Engineer and Franchisee.

#### 3.70.070 Improvements – Utility obstruction prohibited.

The City reserves the right to construct, install, maintain, and operate any public improvement, work, or facility, to do any work that the City may find desirable on, over, or under any street, bridge, or public place, and to vacate, alter or close any street, bridge, or public place. If City vacates any portion of the public way containing facilities, City shall reserve an appurtenant easement for public utilities within that vacated portion within which Franchisee may continue to operate existing facilities under the terms of this franchise for at least the remaining term as set forth in AMC 3.70.030. Nothing in this Chapter shall be construed in any way to prevent the proper authorities of the City from sewering (sanitary and storm), providing water service, grading, planking, rocking, paving, repairing, altering, or improving any of the streets, alleys, avenues, thoroughfares, and public highways,

places and grounds within the City in or upon which the poles, wires or other conductors of Franchisee shall be placed, but all such work or improvements shall be done if possible so as not to obstruct or prevent the free use of said poles, wires, conductors, conduits, pipes, or other apparatus, and the moving of company facilities, where required due to such work by the City, will be done by Franchisee within 120 days of notice by the City without cost to the City. The Franchisee shall furnish maps or drawings to the City or contractor, as the case may be, showing the approximate location of all its structures in the area involved in such proposed work. Any such work done for or at the request of a private individual, entity, developer, or development shall be done at the expense of such private individual, entity, developer, or development.

## 3.70.080 Emergency removal and alternate routing of facilities.

If, at any time, in case of fire, disaster, or other imminent threat to public safety in the franchise territory, it shall become necessary in the reasonable judgment of the City to cut or move any of the wires, cables, amplifiers or other appurtenances to the system of the Franchisee, such cutting or moving may be done in a manner that minimizes disruption to Franchisee's services and facilities, and City shall provide prompt notice to Franchisee. Any repairs rendered necessary thereby shall be made by the Franchisee, at its sole expense; provided, that such repairs are not necessitated by a negligent act of the City, in which case costs for repairs shall be borne by the City. The City shall hold the Franchisee, its agents, employees, officers and assigns hereunder harmless from any claims arising out of the City's cutting or moving of Franchisee's facilities. In the event continued use of any street is denied to the Franchisee by the City for any reason, the Franchisee shall provide service to affected subscribers over such alternate routes as shall be determined by Franchisee within a reasonable period of time.

## 3.70.090 Cables, wires - Rearrangement - Notice.

Whenever the City reasonably determines that the public interest requires that it is necessary to rearrange, remove, lower or raise the aerial cables or wires or other apparatus of the Franchisee to permit the passage of any building, machinery or other object, or to widen/realign City streets, or to make any other alteration or improvement which will require rearrangement of Franchisee's facilities or equipment, the said Franchisee will perform such rearrangement within a reasonable period after written notice from the City. Said notice shall bear the approval of such official as Council may designate and shall provide that the costs of such rearrangement shall be borne by any third persons whose activities create the need for rearrangement except that a request by the City of Albany, on behalf of itself or any other unit of government, to rearrange aerial cables or wires or other apparatus of the Franchisee shall be accomplished by the Franchisee within 120 days at no cost to the City.

#### 3.70.100 Tree trimming.

Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, Franchisee may trim trees, when necessary, in public rights-of-way for the operation of the lines, wires, cables and antennas or other appurtenances, provided such trimming shall be done by competent employees, agents, or contractors; and it shall be done without cost or expense to the City.

Franchisee may prune or cause to be pruned, using proper arboricultural practices, any tree located in the Right-of-Way which substantially interferes with Franchisee's Telecommunications System if Franchisee gives no less than fourteen (14) days' advance written notice to the City's Urban Forester, City Franchise Administrator, and any adjoining property owners. Such pruning work shall be the minimum amount required to alleviate the substantial interference with the operation of Franchisee's Telecommunications System. Any contractor engaged by Franchisee to perform work under this subsection must be approved by the City in advance of the performance of any work. Any wood, debris or other matter resulting from the pruning of trees shall be removed from the Right-of-Way on the same day pruning occurs.

#### 3.70.110 Use of poles.

The City reserves to itself the right at any time to use the poles and other installations of the Franchisee erected or installed under the authority granted in this Chapter for any City-owned facilities of whatsoever nature, but it is agreed that such use shall not interfere with the Franchisee's use thereof. Franchisee shall not be required to own or operate any facilities the City is using if the Franchisee ceases to have a need therefor.

## 3.70.120 Temporary relocation at the request of third parties.

Whenever it is necessary to temporarily relocate or rearrange any Facility of Franchisee to permit the passage of any building, machinery or other object, Franchisee shall perform the work upon thirty (30) business days' written notice from the persons desiring to move the building, machinery, or other object. The notice shall: (1) demonstrate that the third party has acquired any necessary permit from the City; (2) detail the route of movement of the building, machinery or other object; (3) provide that the person requesting the temporary relocation shall be responsible for Franchisee's costs; (4) provide that the requestor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and Franchisee from any and all damages or claims resulting either from the moving of the building, machinery or other object or from the temporary relocation of Franchisee Facilities; and (5) be accompanied by a cash deposit or other security acceptable to Franchisee for the costs of relocation. Franchisee is not obligated to comply with any request to temporarily relocate or rearrange any Facility if the notice fails to meet any of the requirements in the previous sentence. The cash deposit or other acceptable security shall be in an amount reasonably calculated by Franchisee to cover Franchisee's costs of temporary relocation and restoration. Franchisee may, in its sole discretion, waive the cash deposit or other acceptable security requirement.

## 3.70.130 Right-of-way vacation.

If any Right-of-Way or portion thereof used by Franchisee is vacated by the City during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall, without expense to the City, remove its Telecommunications System therefrom and restore, repair, or reconstruct the Right-of-Way or portion thereof in as good or better condition as before the removal, unless the City Council specifically reserves to Franchisee the right to continue to use the vacated Right-of-Way. In the event of failure, neglect, or refusal of Franchisee, after ninety (90) days' notice by the City, to restore, repair, reconstruct, improve, or maintain such vacated Right-of-Way, the City may perform such work or cause such work to be performed. The direct, indirect, and consequential costs thereof, as a result of the Franchisee's delay, as determined by the City Council, shall be entered in the Docket of City Liens against any property of Franchisee, and such lien shall be enforced in like manner and with like effect as other liens entered in such docket. In the event of vacation under this Section, the City shall cooperate with Franchisee to identify alternative locations within the Rights-of-Way for placement of Franchisee's Facilities.

#### 3.70.140 Maintenance of facilities.

Franchisee shall be solely responsible for performing all required maintenance and improvements to its Telecommunications System and for installing all safeguards reasonably necessary to prevent injury to any person, or to any publicly or privately owned property, and Franchisee shall be solely responsible for all costs thereof. Franchisee shall not construct its Telecommunications System in a manner that requires any of its customers to install cables, ducts, conduits, or other facilities in, under, or over the Rights-of-Way. Franchisee shall be responsible, at its own expense, for repairing any trench settlement or other paving defect resulting from the installation of Facilities in the Rights-of-Way.

#### 3.70.150 Discontinued use of facilities.

Whenever Franchisee intends to permanently discontinue use of part or all its Telecommunications System, Franchisee shall submit a completed application to the City Engineer for approval, describing the Facility or Facilities involved and the date on which the Franchisee intends to discontinue its use. Franchisee may remove the Facility or request that the City permit the Facility to remain in place, which permission shall be in the sole discretion of the City. If Franchisee is permitted to abandon its Facilities in place as evidenced by written consent from the City, Franchisee shall submit to the City a deed or other form of documentation acceptable to the City Attorney transferring ownership of such Facilities in the Rights-of-Way to the City.

After the transfer of ownership is complete, the Franchisee shall have no further obligation or the Facilities. Notwithstanding Franchisee's request that any such Facility remain in place, the City Engineer may require the Franchisee to remove the Facility from the Rights-of-Way, or modify the Facility, or a combination of both, in order to protect the public health and safety, or otherwise serve the public interest. Franchisee shall complete such removal or modification in accordance with a schedule set by the City Engineer. Until the City consents

to Franchisee's abandonment, or Franchisee removes or modifies the Facility as directed by the City Engineer, or until the rights to and responsibility for the Facility are accepted by another person or entity having authority to construct and maintain such Facilities, Franchisee shall be responsible for all necessary repairs and relocations of the Facilities, as well as restoration of the Public Rights-Of-Way, in the same manner and degree as if the Facilities were in active use. Franchisee shall also retain all liability for such Facilities.

#### 3.70.160 Hazardous substances.

Franchisee shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws, statutes, regulations, and orders concerning hazardous substances relating to Franchisee's Telecommunications System in the Rights-of-Way. For purposes of this Section, "Hazardous Substances" shall have the meaning given by ORS 465.200(16)(2020).

Upon reasonable notice to Franchisee and in the presence of an authorized representative of Franchisee, the City may inspect Franchisee's facilities in the Right-of-Way to determine if any release of Hazardous Substances has occurred, or may occur, from or related to Franchisee's Telecommunications System.

In removing or modifying any of its Facilities as provided in this Agreement, Franchisee shall also remove all residue of Hazardous Substances in compliance with applicable environmental clean-up standards related thereto.

City and Franchisee expressly acknowledge that the City shall have no liability whatsoever for any claims, damages or harm caused by or related to the existence or release of Hazardous Substances in or by Franchisee's Telecommunications System, or for Franchisee's failure to adequately address or clean up such Hazardous Substances. Franchisee shall indemnify City for any claims, damages, or harm according to the requirements set forth in AMC 3.70.260 of this Agreement.

## 3.70.170 Performance, compliance with laws, rules, and regulations.

At all times during the term of this franchise, Franchisee shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of the United States of America, the State of Oregon, and the City of Albany, including all agencies and subdivisions thereof. Franchisee shall be subject to the lawful exercise of the police power of the City of Albany and to such reasonable regulations of general applicability as the City may from time to time hereafter by resolution or ordinance provide insofar as such regulations or ordinances do not materially alter or impair the rights and obligations of Franchisee and are adopted pursuant to the lawful police power of the City, and are adopted and enforced in a reasonable, uniform, and nondiscriminatory manner. No provision of this franchise shall be construed as a waiver of local, State or Federal law, or as a limit of liability.

Franchisee shall at all times keep and maintain all of its poles, fixtures, conduits, wires, and its entire system in good state of repair and shall at all times conduct its operations under this franchise, including installation, construction, or maintenance of its facilities, in a safe and workmanlike manner so as not to present a danger to the public or the City.

The location, construction, extension, installation, maintenance, removal, and relocation of the facilities of the Franchisee shall conform to the requirements of the State and Federal statutes and regulations adopted pursuant thereto in force at the time of such work, and such reasonable specifications in force at the time of such work, as the City may from time to time adopt. All installations, rearrangements, removals, lowering or raising of aerial cables or wiring or other apparatus shall be done in conformance with the requirements of the National Electric Safety Code, the laws of the State of Oregon and the ordinances of the City. The City may provide such specifications relating thereto as may be necessary or convenient for public safety or the orderly development of the City. The City may amend and add to such specifications from time to time.

#### 3.70.180 Franchise fee; Payment; and Auditing.

As compensation for the benefits and privileges granted pursuant to this Agreement, and in consideration for use of the Rights-of-Way, the Franchisee shall pay to the City, on a quarterly basis, a franchise fee for the duration of this Agreement.

Effective on the date when the Franchise agreement is fully executed, and until the franchise's expiration as provided in AMC 3.70.030 Franchisee shall pay to the City quarterly the greater of: (1) seven percent (7%) of gross revenues collected by Franchisee and derived from Franchisee's provision of all services authorized and delivered pursuant to this agreement within the corporate limits of the City, or (2) a minimum fee of \$750.00 per quarter will be due the City for administration of this agreement and for use of the City's Right-of-Way. If the seven percent (7%) of gross revenues exceeds the minimum fee each quarter, then the greater amount will be due the City.

This franchise fee shall be sent by check or electronic funds transfer and received by the finance department of the City of Albany before the last business day of the month following the month revenues were received by the Franchisee, e.g., Ordinance approval March 23, Effective Date April 23, Payment period begins May 1 through July 31, Quarterly payment due August 31. If a payment is not received by the date set forth above, the payment shall be deemed delinquent and shall accrue interest at a rate of nine percent (9%) per annum.

Payments made by Franchisee will be accepted by the City from the Franchisee, in payment of any separate permit fees that are imposed by the City on Franchisee for street openings, construction or inspection or maintenance of fixtures or facilities. However, Franchisee shall not deduct charges and penalties imposed by the City for noncompliance with charter provisions, ordinances, resolutions, or permit conditions from the franchise fee required by this Chapter.

No acceptance of any franchise fee payment shall be construed as an accord that the amount paid is, in fact, the correct amount, nor shall any acceptance of payments be construed as a release of any claim that the City may have for further or additional sums payable.

If the City determines that Franchisee made any underpayment, and that the underpayment exceeded five percent (5%) of the amount due, Franchisee shall pay interest compounded monthly at the current rate nine percent (9%). Interest shall be due on the entire underpayment from the date on which payment was due until the date on which full payment is received. If the Franchisee disputes the City's determination of underpayment, the Franchisee shall place the disputed amount in an interest-bearing escrow account jointly controlled by the parties until final resolution. Interest shall accrue to the prevailing party.

The City, its agents, and representatives shall have the authority to inspect, review and audit all of Franchisee's books, maps, and records, directly concerning any and all amounts due under this Agreement, upon not less than thirty (30) days' prior written notice to Franchisee. Franchisee shall keep all books, maps, and records so as to accurately show the same and shall have such books, maps, and records available during normal business hours within the City's metropolitan region. Any review by the City under this subsection shall be completed within three (3) years from the date payment was due. If the City requests in writing that Franchisee provide, or cause to be provided, copies of any information reasonably within the scope of the review, and Franchisee fails within thirty (30) days of receipt of the request to provide, or cause to be provided, such information, then the three (3) year period shall be extended by one day for each day or part thereof beyond thirty (30) days that Franchisee fails to provide, or fails to cause to be provided, such requested information.

## 3.70.190 Taxes, fees, and charges.

Nothing in this Chapter shall give the Franchisee any credit against any uniform, nondiscriminatory business tax to the extent such tax applies to revenues other than those revenues that are the subject of the franchise fee, or any ad valorem property tax now or hereafter levied against real property or personal property within the City, or against any local improvement assessments or any business tax imposed on Franchisee, or against any charges imposed upon the Franchisee, or against any charges imposed upon the Franchisee's property.

Payment of the franchise fee due under this Agreement shall not exempt the Franchisee from the payment of any other license fee, permit fee, tax or charge on the business, occupation, property, activity, or income of the

Franchisee that may be lawfully imposed by the City or any other taxing authority, except as may otherwise be provided in the ordinance or laws imposing such other license fee, permit fee, inspection fee, tax, or charge.

## 3.70.200 Sale of subscriber lists prohibited.

Except as otherwise expressly permitted by law, the Franchisee shall not sell, or otherwise make available any list which identifies subscribers by name or address, to any person, agency, or entity, except as needed to maintain current services or implement new services to subscribers in connection with Franchisee's services.

## 3.70.210 Abandonment; Removal of facilities upon expiration.

If the Franchisee goes out of business or withdraws service from the area and as a consequence refuses to renew the agreement, all rights to the use of the connection media revert to the City who may sell, lease, or otherwise use the connection media at its sole discretion. The connection media shall be left in working order and not be intentionally cut or destroyed. The City may require the media be removed from all poles and underground conduits by the former Franchisee at its own expense.

Upon expiration of this Agreement, Franchisee shall either remove its Facilities in accordance with ORS 221.470(2020) or seek City's written consent to leave its Facilities in place pursuant to AMC 3.70.150 of this Agreement.

## 3.70.220 Reports and inspection.

With each franchise fee payment, the Franchisee shall furnish a sworn statement or declaration under oath from the Chief Finance Officer or designee, setting forth the amount and calculation of the payment. The statement shall detail the gross linear feet of cable which exists within the Albany city limits and the calculation of the franchise fee paid and shall specify the nature and amount of all exclusions and deductions from such revenue claimed by the Franchisee in calculating the franchise fee. The Franchise Administrator of the City may require the Franchisee to provide any additional information reasonably necessary for administration of the franchise fee.

## 3.70.230 Change of law; Amendment of franchise agreement.

This Agreement may be amended from time to time to conform to any changes in the controlling federal or state law, or other changes material to this Agreement. Each party agrees to bargain in good faith with the other party concerning such proposed amendments. This Agreement also may be amended by mutual consent of the parties or their successors-in-interest. Any amendments hereto shall be by written instrument executed with the same formalities as this Agreement.

To the extent any lawful City rule, ordinance, or regulation is adopted or amended and is generally imposed on all similarly situated persons or entities, the rule, ordinance, or regulation shall apply without need for amendment of this Agreement. The City shall provide Franchisee with notice of any such change in law prior to its adoption.

#### 3.70.240 Franchise nonexclusive.

This franchise is not exclusive and shall not be construed as a limitation on the City in granting rights, privileges, and authority to other persons similar to, or different from, those granted by this Chapter, or in constructing, installing, maintaining, or operating any City-owned public utility. In the event the City enters into a franchise, permit, license, authorization, or other agreement of any kind with any other person or entity other than Franchisee to enter into the City's streets and public ways for the purpose of conducting business as a telecommunications carrier as that term is defined in ORS 133.721(8) within the City, the material provisions thereof shall be reasonably comparable to those contained herein, insofar as this is not in conflict with rules of government, in order that one operator not be granted an unfair competitive advantage over another, and to provide all parties equal protection under the law.

## 3.70.250 Insurance and bonding.

The Franchisee shall, for the purposes of carrying out the provisions of this Section, prior to commencing construction of any kind, have in full force and effect, and file and maintain during the term of the franchise a certificate of insurance evidence thereto with the Franchise Administrator, good and sufficient policies covering:

- 1. Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the State of Oregon including Employers' Liability with limits of \$1,000,000; Franchisee shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these same requirements and shall contain a Waiver of Subrogation against the City; and
- 2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits of \$5,000,000 per occurrence and \$5,000,000 general aggregate, with the aggregate on a per-project basis; and
- 3. Business Automobile Liability Insurance, for any owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles used in the performance of this agreement with combined single limits of \$5,000,000 each accident; and
- 4. Pollution Liability Insurance with limits of \$5,000,000 each incident and in the aggregate. If policy is on a "claims made" basis it must provide a 24-month tail or reporting period.

The City of Albany, its officers, agents, and employees, shall be named an additional insured in said policy for losses caused in whole or in part by reason of the exercise of the rights and privileges herein granted.

Franchisee shall be financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles, self-insured retention and/or self-insurance. This insurance shall not be canceled or materially altered without thirty (30) days' written notice first being given to the City's Franchise Administrator. If the insurance is canceled or materially altered within the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall provide a replacement policy with the same terms.

Each policy, Workers' Compensation, Commercial General Liability, Business Automobile Liability, Pollution Liability shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the City.

Prior to the commencement of any construction work by the Franchisee, the Franchisee shall file both a construction bond and a performance bond in an amount approved by the City in favor of the City and any other person who may suffer damages as a result of the breach of any duty by the Franchisee assured by such bond. Such bond as contemplated herein shall be in a form approved by the City and shall, among other matters, cover the cost of removal of any property of Franchisee. In no event shall the amount of said bond be construed to limit the liability of the Franchisee for damages. The City, at its sole option, may waive this requirement.

## 3.70.260 Indemnification.

Subject to the limitations set forth in ORS 30.260 through ORS 30.300, the Oregon Tort Claims Act, and the Oregon Constitution each party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other, and the other's officials, agents and employees, against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, proceedings, damages, costs, reasonable attorney's fees or liabilities ("Claims") arising out of, pertaining to, or occurring through the exercise of, the rights and privileges retained by, granted to, or exercised by that party pursuant to this Agreement. Each party shall give to the other notice in writing of any such Claims within twenty (20) days of the date that party receives notice of any such Claims. Neither party shall settle, compromise, or take any action prejudicial to the other's defense of or interest in such Claims without the express written consent of the other party.

Franchisee also shall indemnify the City for any damages, claims, additional costs, or expenses assessed against or payable by the City arising out of or resulting, directly or indirectly, from Franchisee's failure to remove, adjust or relocate any of its Facilities in the Rights-of-Way in a timely manner in accordance with a relocation schedule furnished to Franchisee by the City Engineer, unless Franchisee's failure arises directly from the City's negligence or willful misconduct.

Franchisee agrees to forever indemnify the City against any claims, suits, actions, costs, and expenses, of any kind, whether direct or indirect, incurred by the City arising out of the release or threat of release of any hazardous substance as defined in ORS 465.200(16)(2020) caused by Franchisee's ownership, operation, or maintenance of a Telecommunications System in the Rights-of-Way.

## 3.70.270 Assignment, transfer, merger, lease, or mortgage.

This Agreement shall not be assigned nor any of Franchisee's Telecommunications System located in the Rights-of-Way sold, mortgaged, assigned, or otherwise transferred, without the prior written consent of the City, which will not be unreasonably withheld, except to entities that control, are controlled by, or are under common control with, the Franchisee, or in the event that only *de minimis* assets are sold, assigned, or transferred. The Franchisee shall notify the City of any proposed transfers to such entities no less than thirty (30) days in advance of such assignment or transfer. The City's granting of consent in one instance shall not render unnecessary any subsequent consent in any other instance.

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to prohibit the mortgage, pledge, or assignment of tangible assets of Franchisee's Telecommunications System for the purpose of financing the acquisition of equipment for, or the construction and operation of, Franchisee's Telecommunications System without the City's consent, but any such mortgage, pledge or assignment shall be subject to the City's other rights under this Agreement.

In determining whether the City will consent to any sale, lease, mortgage, assignment, merger or transfer of the Franchisee's Telecommunications System, the City may inquire into the technical, legal, and financial qualifications of the prospective party with respect to its ability to perform under this Agreement, and the City may condition its consent upon satisfactory results of such inquiry. Franchisee shall assist the City with any such inquiry. The City shall not unreasonably delay or withhold its consent to any such sale, lease, mortgage, assignment, transfer, or merger.

No sale, lease, mortgage, assignment, transfer, or merger for which the City's consent is required may occur until the Franchisee's successor, assignee or lessee has complied with the requirements of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, providing certificates of insurance, unless the City Council waives such compliance by official act.

Within ten (10) days after execution and delivery of any instrument so consented to by the City, Franchisee shall file with the City Clerk an executed counterpart or certified copy thereof.

## 3.70.280 Rights; Forfeiture; Termination; Remedies.

In addition to any other rights set out elsewhere in this Agreement, the City reserves the right to declare a forfeiture of this Agreement and all of Franchisee's rights arising hereunder, upon the occurrence of one or more of the following:

- 1. The Franchisee violates any material provision of this Agreement and fails to cure the violation within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving notice of the violation from the City.
- 2. The Franchisee is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have practiced any fraud or deceit upon the City.
- 3. There is a final determination that Franchisee has failed, refused, neglected or is otherwise unable to obtain or maintain any permit required by any federal or state regulatory body regarding Franchisee's operation of its Telecommunications System within the City.
- 4. Franchisee fails to complete construction of any approved Facilities for more than eighteen (18) months after approval unless the City and Franchisee agree in writing to an extension for completion of such construction.
- 5. Franchisee becomes unable or unwilling to pay its debts or is adjudged a bankrupt.

For purposes of this subsection, the following provisions are, without limitation, material to this Agreement, thus allowing the City to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement:

1. The invalidation, failure to pay or any suspension of Franchisee's payments of franchise fees to the City under this Agreement.

- 2. Any failure by Franchisee to submit timely reports regarding the calculation of its franchise fees to the City.
- 3. Any failure by Franchisee to provide or maintain the liability insurance required under this Agreement.
- 4. Any failure by Franchisee to post or maintain any bond(s) required under this Agreement.
- 5. Any failure by Franchisee to provide copies of requested information as required in AMC 3.70.180 of this Agreement.
- 6. Any failure by Franchisee to otherwise fully comply with the requirements of this Agreement.

This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of the parties at any time.

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time for default, including but not limited to those occurrences set forth in this Section by providing not less than thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the other party, provided, however that this Agreement shall automatically terminate if Franchisee does not pay the franchise fee required under AMC 3.70.180 within one hundred and eighty (180) days of its due date and has been given not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to cure the delinquency.

Upon termination of this Agreement, the disposition of the Franchisee's property and Facilities that occupy the Rights-of-Way shall be governed by AMC 3.70.150 of this Agreement.

In addition to any other rights set out elsewhere in this franchise, the City may terminate this franchise if Franchisee violates any material provision of the franchise, including but not limited to failing to pay or any suspension of Franchisee's payments of franchise fees to the City under this franchise, failure by Franchisee to submit timely reports regarding the calculation of its gross revenues-based franchise fees to the City, failure to maintain the liability insurance and/or bonds required under this franchise, or failure to comply with all other State, Federal or local laws as set forth in this franchise, and the violation continues for 45 days after Franchisee receives notice of the violation from the City. All remedies and penalties under this franchise, including termination of the franchise, are cumulative, and the recovery or enforcement of one is not a bar to the recovery or enforcement of any other such remedy or penalty.

The remedies and penalties contained in this Chapter, including termination of the franchise, are not exclusive, and the City reserves the right to enforce the penal provisions of any ordinance or resolution and to avail itself of any and all remedies available at law or in equity. Failure to enforce shall not be construed as a waiver of a breach of any term, condition or obligation imposed upon the Franchisee by, or pursuant to, this Chapter. A specific waiver of a particular breach of any term, condition or obligation imposed upon the Franchisee by, or pursuant to, this Chapter or acceptance of any payment due shall not be waiver of any other or subsequent or future breach of the same or of any other term, condition, or obligation itself.

#### 3.70.290 Force majeure.

Neither the City nor the Franchisee shall hold the other responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond the control of the other or the other's employees and agents.

## 3.70.300 Severability; Renegotiation.

In the event any provisions of this franchise are deemed to be void, invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall be severed from the remainder of this franchise so as not to cause the invalidity or unenforceability of the remainder of this franchise. All remaining provisions of this franchise shall then continue in full force and effect. If any provision shall be deemed invalid due to its scope and breadth, such provisions shall be deemed valid to the extent of the scope and breadth permitted by law.

If any change in federal or state law materially affects any provision of this Agreement, including any change in the laws governing the services which may be assessed franchise fees, the City and the Franchisee may mutually agree to renegotiate the terms of this Agreement. The party seeking renegotiation shall serve on the other party written notice of an offer to renegotiate. In the event the party receiving the notification request accepts the offer to renegotiate, the parties shall have ninety (90) days to conduct and complete the renegotiation.

#### 3.70.310 Public records.

Franchisee acknowledges that information submitted to the City is open to public inspection under the Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.311 through 192.478. Franchisee is responsible for becoming familiar with and understanding the provisions of the Oregon Public Records Law.

Franchisee may identify information, submitted to the City as confidential pursuant to ORS 192.355(4), such as trade secrets, financial records, customer information or technical information. Franchisee shall prominently mark any information for which it claims confidentiality with the word "Confidential" on each page of such information, prior to submitting such information to the City. Franchisee shall also provide a written explanation as to why such information is confidential under state or federal law. The City shall treat any information so marked as confidential until the City receives any request for disclosure of such information. City shall make reasonable efforts to provide the Franchisee notice of a request for information marked as confidential, including a copy of the request, within ten (10) business days of receiving any such request. Franchisee shall have five (5) business days within which to provide a written response to the City before the City will disclose any of the requested confidential information. The City shall retain the sole discretion to determine whether to release the requested confidential information, in accordance with applicable laws.

#### 3.70.320 Choice of law; Venue; Notice.

The laws of the State of Oregon shall govern the validity of this Agreement, its interpretation and performance, and other claims related to it. Venue for litigation shall be in the Circuit Courts in and for Linn County, Oregon.

Any notice provided for under this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing and (1) delivered personally to the other party, (2) deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, (3) sent by overnight or commercial air courier (such as Federal Express), or (4) sent by facsimile transmission.

Any such notice or communication delivered by personal delivery shall be deemed delivered and effective upon actual receipt. Any notice or communication sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, shall be deemed delivered and effective five (5) days after mailing. Any notice or communication sent by overnight courier shall be deemed delivered and effective one (1) business day after dispatch. Any notice or communication sent by facsimile transmission shall be deemed delivered when receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine. To be effective against either party, such facsimile transmission shall be confirmed by telephone notice to the other party.

#### 3.70.330 Complete agreement.

This Franchise Agreement, including any attachments and laws, rules and regulations incorporated herein or to which this Agreement is subject, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement.

## 3.70.340 Dispute costs; Attorneys' fees.

In the event an attorney is employed to enforce the provisions of this franchise (including any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar proceedings affecting creditors' rights generally), the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred, irrespective of whether any legal proceeding is commenced. If any legal action, arbitration, or other proceeding is brought to construe, interpret, or enforce the terms of this franchise, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred in connection therewith, both at trial and on any appeal therefrom or petitions for review thereof. Such

sum shall include an amount estimated by the court as the reasonable costs and fees to be incurred by the prevailing party in collecting any monetary judgment or award or otherwise in enforcing any order, judgment or decree entered in such suit, action, or other proceeding.

## 3.70.350 Successors and assigns.

This franchise is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of all parties hereto, their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns. Franchisee, however, shall not make any assignment without written consent of the City, and any assignment made without the City's consent, shall be null and void. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, Franchisee may assign this franchise without the City's consent, (1) to an entity controlled by, under common control with, or controlling Franchisee; or (2) by mortgage, hypothecation, or other security instrument to secure indebtedness.

Section 2. Franchise effective only upon acceptance of Franchisee.

This franchise is effective on the date provided herein only upon written acceptance of its terms by an authorized representative of Franchisee.

	Passed by the Council:
	Approved by the Mayor:
	Effective Date:
	Mayor
ATTEST:	
City Clerk	

## ORDINANCE NO.



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3.80 OF THE ALBANY MUNICIPAL CODE (AMC) AND RENEWING A NON-EXCLUSIVE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM FRANCHISE TO ASTOUND BROADBAND, LLC FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A TELECOMMUNICATON SYSTEM; AND FIXING TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND COMPENSATION OF SUCH FRANCHISE; AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 5840

WHEREAS, pursuant to federal law and state statutes the City is authorized to grant non-exclusive franchises to occupy the City Rights-of-Way or other public property in order to construct, operate, use, and maintain telecommunications service, gas service, electricity, and other public utilities, within the municipal boundaries of the city of Albany; and

WHEREAS, the City of Albany has determined that the financial, legal, and technical ability of Astound Broadband, LLC ("Astound") is reasonably sufficient to continue to provide services, facilities, and equipment necessary to meet the future telecommunication needs of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the people of the City of Albany do ordain as follows.

Section 1. AMC Chapter 3.80.010 through 3.80.350 is established to read as follows:

## 3.80.010 Franchise granted.

The City of Albany, hereinafter referred to as "City", hereby grants to Astound, a limited liability company authorized to conduct business in Oregon, hereinafter referred to as "Franchisee", the non-exclusive right and privilege to occupy the City's Rights-of-Way for the purpose of construction, use, operation, and maintenance of a Telecommunications System. Franchisee shall use its Telecommunications System solely to provide Telecommunications Services (as defined in ORS 759.005(8)), private telecommunication network (as defined in ORS 759.005(4)) service, and internet access service (as defined in ORS 305. 822(1)(b)) within the City and to place, erect, lay, maintain, and operate in, upon, over and under streets, alleys, avenues, thoroughfares and public highways, places and grounds within the City (collectively, "Public Ways"), poles, wires, conduits, cabinets, appurtenances, and other appliances and conductors (collectively, "Facilities") for all communication purposes.

This Agreement and the grant of authority conferred herein are not exclusive. The City reserves the right to grant the authority to others to use the Franchise Area during the term of this Agreement. The Franchisee shall respect the rights and property of the City and other authorized users of the Rights-of-Way. This Agreement does not confer on Franchisee any right, title, or interest in any Right-of-Way beyond that expressly conferred herein. This Agreement does not confer any right or privilege to use or occupy any other property of the City or any other entity.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent the City from constructing sewers; from grading, paving, repairing, or altering any Right-of-Way, or from constructing, installing, repairing, or removing water mains or any other public work or improvement. If any of the Franchisee's Telecommunications System interferes with the work described in this subsection, the Franchisee's Telecommunications System shall be removed or replaced as set forth in AMC 3.80.040 of this Agreement.

## 3.80.020 Rules of construction; Definitions.

Throughout this Agreement, captions are intended solely to facilitate reading and reference and shall not affect the meaning and interpretation of this Agreement.

When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word "shall" will always mean mandatory and not merely directory.

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms, phrases, and their derivations shall have the meanings given below unless the context indicates otherwise.

- 1. "City" means the City of Albany, Oregon and the area within its boundaries as extended in the future.
- 2. "Conduit" is an electrical raceway for the enclosure of electrical conductors and may consist of rigid conduit of electrical metallic tubing or plastic tubing.
- 3. "Council" means the legislative body of the City.
- 4. "Customer," "user" or "subscriber" shall mean any person or entity lawfully receiving telecommunications service.
- 5. "Facility" means any tangible component of the Franchisee's Telecommunications System including, but not limited to, fiber, wires, cables, pipes, mains, ducts, conduits, vaults, pedestals, poles, antennas, power boxes, cabinets, and electronic equipment.
- 6. "Franchise Administrator" means the City Manager or designee of the City of Albany.
- 7. "Franchisee" means Astound, its successors, legal representatives, or assigns.
- 8. "Gross Revenues" means any and all revenue in whatever form, grant, subsidy, exchange, or otherwise directly or indirectly received by the Franchisee for Telecommunications Service provided to subscribers within the City of Albany subject to all applicable limitations imposed by federal and/or state law. "Local" means Linn County, Oregon or Benton County, Oregon.
- 9. "May" is permissive.
- 10. "Minimum Annual Franchise Fee" means the minimum amount paid to the City of Albany under this Agreement.
- 11. "Person" includes an individual, corporation, association, firm, partnership, and joint stock company.
- 12. "Private Telecommunications Network" means a system for the provision of telecommunications service or any portion of telecommunications service, including the construction, maintenance, or operation of the system, by a person for the exclusive use of that person and not for resale, directly or indirectly.
- 13. "Public Place" includes any City-owned park, place, facility, or grounds within the City that is open to the public but does not include a street or bridge.
- 14. "Radio Common Carrier" means any corporation, company, association, joint stock association, partnership and person, their lessees, trustees or receivers and any town making available facilities to provide radio communications service, radio paging or cellular communications service for hire.
- 15. "Rights-of-Way" means the surface of, and the space above and below, any street, road, alley, highway, sidewalk, utility easement, public square, public park, or other public place owned or otherwise held by the City.
- 16. "Service Area" means the legal boundaries of the City and including any areas annexed during the term of the franchise.
- 17. "Street" includes the surface, the air space above the surface, and the area below the surface of any public street, alley, avenue, road, boulevard, thoroughfare, or public highway, other public right-of-way, including public utility easements, but does not include a bridge or public place.
- 18. "Shall" is mandatory.
- 19. "Technical Facilities" or "Facilities" shall mean all real property, equipment, and fixtures used by Franchisee in the distribution of its services through its system and includes, but is not limited to, poles, conduit, cables, wires, microwave transmitters, antennae, amplifiers, etc.

- 20. "Telecommunications Service" (as defined in ORS 759.05(8)) and means any service provided for a fee to the public, or to such class of users as to be effectively available to the public without regard to the facilities used to provide the telecommunications; and for the purpose of voice, video or data transmission, including, but not limited to, local exchange service, access service, extended area service, call origination, interconnection, switching, transport, call termination and/or any other telecommunications service identified and authorized by the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") or the Oregon Public Utility Commission. Telecommunications Service does not include any of the following: cable service as defined by 47 U.S.C. § 522; open video system service as defined in 47 C.F.R. § 76 (2009); private communications system services provided without using the public rights-of-way; over-the-air radio or television broadcasting to the public-at-large from facilities licensed by the FCC or any successor thereto; direct-to-home satellite service within the meaning of Section 602 of the Telecommunications Act of 1980; or commercial mobile radio service as defined by 47 C.F.R. § 20.3 (2009).
- 21. "Telecommunications System" means all Facilities owned, leased, rented, maintained, or used by Franchisee for the purpose of providing Telecommunications Service and located in, under and/or above Rights-of-Way.

#### 3.80.030 Effective date; Term.

The effective date of this Agreement shall be the first day of the full calendar month following the date the ordinance takes effect (the "Effective Date").

This Agreement, and all rights and obligations pertaining hereto, shall, subject to any applicable statutory or regulatory limitations on the maximum term allowed for public contracts, continue in full force and effect for an initial term of five (5) years, commencing on the Effective Date. Unless sooner terminated by either party as set forth in AMC 3.80.280 below, at the end of the initial five (5) year term, this Agreement shall be reviewed by both parties and must be in compliance with ORS 221.460(2020). This agreement may be extended by mutual written agreement of the parties so long as no party is in default.

#### 3.80.040 Construction; Excavation; and Relocation.

Franchisee shall maintain maps and data pertaining to all of its Facilities located in the City on file at an office in the State of Oregon. The City shall be allowed to inspect all such maps and data pertaining to its Facilities located in the City Rights-of-Way at any time during regular business hours upon not less than five (5) business days' prior notice. Upon request of the City and without charge, Franchisee shall provide current maps and data to the City showing the location of all Franchisee's Facilities within the City. Upon completion of any and all of its Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way, Franchisee shall provide a map or maps consistent with this Section to the City, showing the location as built of its installed Telecommunication System in the Rights-of-Way. Such as-built maps shall be in a form reasonably acceptable to the City Engineer and shall define specific locations of Facilities. City will not sell or transmit Franchisee maps or data to third parties unless permitted by Franchisee or required by law. The City will make available to Franchisee at no cost any relevant City-prepared maps or data.

Subject to applicable rules and regulations of the City, Franchisee may perform all excavations and other work necessary to construct, operate and maintain its Telecommunications System. All construction and maintenance of any and all Facilities within Rights-of-Way shall, regardless of who performs the excavation, installation and/or construction, are and shall remain the responsibility of the Franchisee. Franchisee shall apply for and obtain all permits necessary for excavation, installation and/or construction of any Facilities located in the Rights-of-Way and shall pay all applicable fees due for City permits. Franchisee must also give such notice as required by law to other franchisees, licensees, or permittees of the City, and/or other units of government owning or maintaining facilities which may be affected by the proposed work.

Prior to beginning any excavation, installation, or construction work, Franchisee shall provide the City with an initial schedule and the estimated total cost of such work. When Franchisee's work under its permit is completed, Franchisee shall provide the City with the total amount of Right-of-Way, measured linearly, occupied by Franchisee's Telecommunications System, and with a map showing the location of its installed Telecommunications System, as built. Such "as-built" maps shall be in a form reasonably acceptable to the City Engineer.

All work by Franchisee in the Rights-of-Way shall be properly safeguarded for the prevention of accidents. All of Franchisee's work under AMC 3.80.130 and 3.80.150 of this Agreement shall be done in strict compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of the City and the State of Oregon.

Within thirty (30) days of any change in location of Franchisee's Telecommunications System, Franchisee shall provide a map to the City Engineer, showing the location of Franchisee's Telecommunications System on whatever standard scale the City adopts for general use. The Franchisee shall also provide such maps in an electronic format acceptable to both the City and Franchisee.

In the event that emergency repairs to its Telecommunications System are necessary, Franchisee shall immediately notify the City of the need for such repairs. Franchisee may immediately initiate such emergency repairs and shall apply for appropriate permits the next business day following discovery of the emergency. Franchisee shall comply with all City ordinances and regulations relating to any excavations or construction undertaken during emergency repair work, including the payment of permits or license fees. If emergency work has been done in a manner or location unacceptable to the City, the City shall notify the Franchisee in writing. The Franchisee shall make all appropriate modifications and relocation within sixty (60) days of such written notice.

Franchisee shall comply with ORS 757.542 through ORS 757.562(2020) and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder in making excavations.

The City shall have the right to require Franchisee to change the location of any of its Facilities located within the Rights-of-Way when public convenience and necessity requires such change, and the expense thereof shall be paid solely by Franchisee. Should Franchisee fail to remove or relocate any such Facilities by the date established by the City, which, except in the event of a public emergency, shall not be sooner than ninety (90) days after City's written notice to remove/relocate, the City may cause or effect such removal or relocation, and the expense thereof shall be paid by Franchisee, including all direct, indirect or consequential costs and expenses incurred by the City due to Franchisee's delay. If the City requires Franchisee to relocate any of its Facilities located within the Rights-of-Way, the City shall make a reasonable effort to provide Franchisee with an alternate location for such Facilities.

As permitted by applicable law, administrative rule, or regulation, the City may require Franchisee to remove and replace any overhead Facilities with underground Facilities at the same or different locations subject to Franchisee's engineering and safety standards. The expense of such a conversion shall be paid by Franchisee, and Franchisee may recover its costs from its customers in accordance with state laws and administrative rules or regulations. Nothing in this subsection prevents the City and Franchisee from agreeing to a different form of cost recovery consistent with applicable statutes and administrative rules or regulations on a case-by-case basis.

Franchisee's Telecommunications System shall be constructed and maintained in such manner as not to interfere with sewers, water pipes, or any other property of the City, or with any other pipes, wires, conduits, or other facilities that may have been laid in the Rights-of-Way by the City or pursuant to the City's authority.

Upon Franchisee's acquisition of any Facilities located in the Rights-of-Way, or upon any addition or annexation to the City of any area in which Franchisee owns or controls any Facilities in the Rights-of-Way, the Franchisee shall submit to the City a written statement describing all Facilities involved, along with any documentation

evidencing such acquisition and specifying the location of all such Facilities. Such Facilities shall immediately be subject to the terms of this Agreement upon acquisition or control by Franchisee.

The City may require Franchisee to temporarily remove and/or relocate Facilities located in any Right-of-Way by giving not less than thirty (30) days' advance written notice to Franchisee. Prior to such removal and/or relocation, the City agrees to provide a suitable substitute location for such relocated Facilities to maintain service. The City will assist in acquiring any needed easements if required square footage is not available in the Rights-Of-Way. The cost of removal and relocation of its Facilities to accommodate public projects shall be paid by Franchisee; however, when such removal and relocation are to be temporary and both the initial and the subsequent relocation are for public projects and not at the request of or to accommodate a private party, initial relocation costs shall be paid by Franchisee and the costs of subsequent relocations occurring less than two years after the initial relocation shall be paid by the City.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed in any way to prevent the City from excavating, grading, paving, planking, repairing, widening, altering, or doing any work in any Rights-Of-Way consistent with National Electric Safety Code. The City shall coordinate any such work with Franchisee to avoid, to the extent reasonably foreseeable, any obstruction, injury, or restriction on the use of any of Franchisee's Facilities. Nothing in this Section relieves Franchisee from its obligations set forth herein.

## 3.80.050 Street repair – Expense responsibility.

Whenever Franchisee shall disturb any of the streets for the purpose aforesaid, it or they shall restore the same to good order and condition in accordance with the City of Albany Standard Construction Specifications and the permit issued for the work as soon as practicable without unnecessary delay, and failing to do so, the City shall have the right to fix a reasonable time within which such repairs and restoration of streets shall be completed, and upon failure of such repairs being made by said company, its successors and assigns, the City shall cause such repairs to be made at the expense of Franchisee.

#### 3.80.060 Restoration of rights-of-ways.

Whenever Franchisee disturbs the surface of any Right-of-Way for any purpose, Franchisee shall promptly restore the Right-of-Way to as good or better condition than it had been prior to such disturbance.

All restoration of Rights-of-Way surfaces shall be subject to the approval of the City Engineer who may issue an order requiring correction of the restoration work. If the correction order is not complied with within thirty (30) days or any other such later time as may be specified in the order, the City may restore the surface of the Rights-of-Way, in which case Franchisee shall pay all reasonable costs of the restoration work to the City, including the resurfacing, inspection, supervision, and administrative costs of the resurfacing. If the City restores the surface of any Rights-of-way under this subsection, Franchisee shall also pay for the cost of issuing the correction order. If the work by Franchisee creates a public safety hazard as determined by the City Engineer, Franchisee may be required to repair or restore such Right-of-Way within twenty-four (24) hours of such determination or within such time as otherwise agreed upon by the City Engineer and Franchisee.

#### 3.80.070 Improvements – Utility obstruction prohibited.

The City reserves the right to construct, install, maintain, and operate any public improvement, work, or facility, to do any work that the City may find desirable on, over, or under any street, bridge, or public place, and to vacate, alter or close any street, bridge, or public place. If City vacates any portion of the public way containing facilities, City shall reserve an appurtenant easement for public utilities within that vacated portion within which Franchisee may continue to operate existing facilities under the terms of this franchise for at least the remaining term as set forth in AMC 3.80.030. Nothing in this Chapter shall be construed in any way to prevent the proper authorities of the City from sewering (sanitary and storm), providing water service, grading, planking, rocking, paving, repairing, altering, or improving any of the streets, alleys, avenues, thoroughfares, and public highways, places and grounds within the City in or upon which the poles, wires or other conductors of Franchisee shall be placed, but all such work or improvements shall be done if possible so as not to obstruct or prevent the free use of said poles, wires, conductors, conduits, pipes, or other apparatus, and the moving of company facilities, where

required due to such work by the City, will be done by Franchisee within 120 days of notice by the City without cost to the City. The Franchisee shall furnish maps or drawings to the City or contractor, as the case may be, showing the approximate location of all its structures in the area involved in such proposed work. Any such work done for or at the request of a private individual, entity, developer, or development shall be done at the expense of such private individual, entity, developer, or development.

## 3.80.080 Emergency removal and alternate routing of facilities.

If, at any time, in case of fire, disaster, or other imminent threat to public safety in the franchise territory, it shall become necessary in the reasonable judgment of the City to cut or move any of the wires, cables, amplifiers or other appurtenances to the system of the Franchisee, such cutting or moving may be done in a manner that minimizes disruption to Franchisee's services and facilities, and City shall provide prompt notice to Franchisee. Any repairs rendered necessary thereby shall be made by the Franchisee, at its sole expense; provided, that such repairs are not necessitated by a negligent act of the City, in which case costs for repairs shall be borne by the City. The City shall hold the Franchisee, its agents, employees, officers and assigns hereunder harmless from any claims arising out of the City's cutting or moving of Franchisee's facilities. In the event continued use of any street is denied to the Franchisee by the City for any reason, the Franchisee shall provide service to affected subscribers over such alternate routes as shall be determined by Franchisee within a reasonable period of time.

#### 3.80.090 Cables, wires - Rearrangement - Notice.

Whenever the City reasonably determines that the public interest requires that it is necessary to rearrange, remove, lower or raise the aerial cables or wires or other apparatus of the Franchisee to permit the passage of any building, machinery or other object, or to widen/realign City streets, or to make any other alteration or improvement which will require rearrangement of Franchisee's facilities or equipment, the said Franchisee will perform such rearrangement within a reasonable period after written notice from the City. Said notice shall bear the approval of such official as Council may designate and shall provide that the costs of such rearrangement shall be borne by any third persons whose activities create the need for rearrangement except that a request by the City of Albany, on behalf of itself or any other unit of government, to rearrange aerial cables or wires or other apparatus of the Franchisee shall be accomplished by the Franchisee within 120 days at no cost to the City.

#### 3.80.100 Tree trimming.

Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, Franchisee may trim trees, when necessary, in public rights-ofway for the operation of the lines, wires, cables and antennas or other appurtenances, provided such trimming shall be done by competent employees, agents, or contractors; and it shall be done without cost or expense to the City.

Franchisee may prune or cause to be pruned, using proper arboricultural practices, any tree located in the Right-of-Way which substantially interferes with Franchisee's Telecommunications System if Franchisee gives no less than fourteen (14) days' advance written notice to the City's Urban Forester, City Franchise Administrator, and any adjoining property owners. Such pruning work shall be the minimum amount required to alleviate the substantial interference with the operation of Franchisee's Telecommunications System. Any contractor engaged by Franchisee to perform work under this subsection must be approved by the City in advance of the performance of any work. Any wood, debris or other matter resulting from the pruning of trees shall be removed from the Right-of-Way on the same day pruning occurs.

## 3.80.110 Use of poles.

The City reserves to itself the right at any time to use the poles and other installations of the Franchisee erected or installed under the authority granted in this Chapter for any City-owned facilities of whatsoever nature, but it is agreed that such use shall not interfere with the Franchisee's use thereof. Franchisee shall not be required to own or operate any facilities the City is using if the Franchisee ceases to have a need therefor.

## 3.80.120 Temporary relocation at the request of third parties.

Whenever it is necessary to temporarily relocate or rearrange any Facility of Franchisee to permit the passage of any building, machinery or other object, Franchisee shall perform the work upon thirty (30) business days' written notice from the persons desiring to move the building, machinery, or other object. The notice shall: (1) demonstrate that the third party has acquired any necessary permit from the City; (2) detail the route of movement of the building, machinery or other object; (3) provide that the person requesting the temporary relocation shall be responsible for Franchisee's costs; (4) provide that the requestor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and Franchisee from any and all damages or claims resulting either from the moving of the building, machinery or other object or from the temporary relocation of Franchisee Facilities; and (5) be accompanied by a cash deposit or other security acceptable to Franchisee for the costs of relocation. Franchisee is not obligated to comply with any request to temporarily relocate or rearrange any Facility if the notice fails to meet any of the requirements in the previous sentence. The cash deposit or other acceptable security shall be in an amount reasonably calculated by Franchisee to cover Franchisee's costs of temporary relocation and restoration. Franchisee may, in its sole discretion, waive the cash deposit or other acceptable security requirement.

## 3.80.130 Right-of-way vacation.

If any Right-of-Way or portion thereof used by Franchisee is vacated by the City during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall, without expense to the City, remove its Telecommunications System therefrom and restore, repair, or reconstruct the Right-of-Way or portion thereof in as good or better condition as before the removal, unless the City Council specifically reserves to Franchisee the right to continue to use the vacated Right-of-Way. In the event of failure, neglect, or refusal of Franchisee, after ninety (90) days' notice by the City, to restore, repair, reconstruct, improve, or maintain such vacated Right-of-Way, the City may perform such work or cause such work to be performed. The direct, indirect, and consequential costs thereof, as a result of the Franchisee's delay, as determined by the City Council, shall be entered in the Docket of City Liens against any property of Franchisee, and such lien shall be enforced in like manner and with like effect as other liens entered in such docket. In the event of vacation under this Section, the City shall cooperate with Franchisee to identify alternative locations within the Rights-of-Way for placement of Franchisee's Facilities.

#### 3.80.140 Maintenance of facilities.

Franchisee shall be solely responsible for performing all required maintenance and improvements to its Telecommunications System and for installing all safeguards reasonably necessary to prevent injury to any person, or to any publicly or privately owned property, and Franchisee shall be solely responsible for all costs thereof. Franchisee shall not construct its Telecommunications System in a manner that requires any of its customers to install cables, ducts, conduits, or other facilities in, under, or over the Rights-of-Way. Franchisee shall be responsible, at its own expense, for repairing any trench settlement or other paving defect resulting from the installation of Facilities in the Rights-of-Way.

#### 3.80.150 Discontinued use of facilities.

Whenever Franchisee intends to permanently discontinue use of part or all its Telecommunications System, Franchisee shall submit a completed application to the City Engineer for approval, describing the Facility or Facilities involved and the date on which the Franchisee intends to discontinue its use. Franchisee may remove the Facility or request that the City permit the Facility to remain in place, which permission shall *be in the sole discretion of the City*. If Franchisee is permitted to abandon its Facilities in place as evidenced by written consent from the City, Franchisee shall submit to the City a deed or other form of documentation acceptable to the City Attorney transferring ownership of such Facilities in the Rights-of-Way to the City.

After the transfer of ownership is complete, the Franchisee shall have no further obligation or the Facilities. Notwithstanding Franchisee's request that any such Facility remain in place, the City Engineer may require the Franchisee to remove the Facility from the Rights-of-Way, or modify the Facility, or a combination of both, in order to protect the public health and safety, or otherwise serve the public interest. Franchisee shall complete such removal or modification in accordance with a schedule set by the City Engineer. Until the City consents to Franchisee's abandonment, or Franchisee removes or modifies the Facility as directed by the City Engineer, or until the rights to and responsibility for the Facility are accepted by another person or entity having authority

to construct and maintain such Facilities, Franchisee shall be responsible for all necessary repairs and relocations of the Facilities, as well as restoration of the Public Rights-Of-Way, in the same manner and degree as if the Facilities were in active use. Franchisee shall also retain all liability for such Facilities.

#### 3.80.160 Hazardous substances.

Franchisee shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws, statutes, regulations, and orders concerning hazardous substances relating to Franchisee's Telecommunications System in the Rights-of-Way. For purposes of this Section, "Hazardous Substances" shall have the meaning given by ORS 465.200(16)(2020).

Upon reasonable notice to Franchisee and in the presence of an authorized representative of Franchisee, the City may inspect Franchisee's facilities in the Right-of-Way to determine if any release of Hazardous Substances has occurred, or may occur, from or related to Franchisee's Telecommunications System.

In removing or modifying any of its Facilities as provided in this Agreement, Franchisee shall also remove all residue of Hazardous Substances in compliance with applicable environmental clean-up standards related thereto.

City and Franchisee expressly acknowledge that the City shall have no liability whatsoever for any claims, damages or harm caused by or related to the existence or release of Hazardous Substances in or by Franchisee's Telecommunications System, or for Franchisee's failure to adequately address or clean up such Hazardous Substances. Franchisee shall indemnify City for any claims, damages, or harm according to the requirements set forth in AMC 3.80.260 of this Agreement.

#### 3.80.170 Performance, compliance with laws, rules, and regulations.

At all times during the term of this franchise, Franchisee shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of the United States of America, the State of Oregon, and the City of Albany, including all agencies and subdivisions thereof. Franchisee shall be subject to the lawful exercise of the police power of the City of Albany and to such reasonable regulations of general applicability as the City may from time to time hereafter by resolution or ordinance provide insofar as such regulations or ordinances do not materially alter or impair the rights and obligations of Franchisee and are adopted pursuant to the lawful police power of the City, and are adopted and enforced in a reasonable, uniform, and nondiscriminatory manner. No provision of this franchise shall be construed as a waiver of local, State or Federal law, or as a limit of liability.

Franchisee shall at all times keep and maintain all of its poles, fixtures, conduits, wires, and its entire system in good state of repair and shall at all times conduct its operations under this franchise, including installation, construction, or maintenance of its facilities, in a safe and workmanlike manner so as not to present a danger to the public or the City.

The location, construction, extension, installation, maintenance, removal, and relocation of the facilities of the Franchisee shall conform to the requirements of the State and Federal statutes and regulations adopted pursuant thereto in force at the time of such work, and such reasonable specifications in force at the time of such work, as the City may from time to time adopt. All installations, rearrangements, removals, lowering or raising of aerial cables or wiring or other apparatus shall be done in conformance with the requirements of the National Electric Safety Code, the laws of the State of Oregon and the ordinances of the City. The City may provide such specifications relating thereto as may be necessary or convenient for public safety or the orderly development of the City. The City may amend and add to such specifications from time to time.

## 3.80.180 Franchise fee; Payment; and Auditing.

As compensation for the benefits and privileges granted pursuant to this Agreement, and in consideration for use of the Rights-of-Way, the Franchisee shall pay to the City, on a quarterly basis, a franchise fee for the duration of this Agreement.

Effective on the date when the Franchise agreement is fully executed, and until the franchise's expiration as provided in AMC 3.80.030 Franchisee shall pay to the City quarterly the greater of: (1) seven percent (7%) of gross revenues collected by Franchisee and derived from Franchisee's provision of all services authorized and delivered pursuant to this agreement within the corporate limits of the City, or (2) a minimum fee of \$750.00 per quarter will be due the City for administration of this agreement and for use of the City's Right-of-Way. If the seven percent (7%) of gross revenues exceeds the minimum fee each quarter, then the greater amount will be due the City.

This franchise fee shall be sent by check or electronic funds transfer and received by the finance department of the City of Albany before the last business day of the month following the month revenues were received by the Franchisee, e.g., Ordinance approval March 23, Effective Date April 23, Payment period begins May 1 through July 31, Quarterly payment due August 31. If a payment is not received by the date set forth above, the payment shall be deemed delinquent and shall accrue interest at a rate of nine percent (9%) per annum.

Payments made by Franchisee will be accepted by the City from the Franchisee, in payment of any separate permit fees that are imposed by the City on Franchisee for street openings, construction or inspection or maintenance of fixtures or facilities. However, Franchisee shall not deduct charges and penalties imposed by the City for noncompliance with charter provisions, ordinances, resolutions, or permit conditions from the franchise fee required by this Chapter.

No acceptance of any franchise fee payment shall be construed as an accord that the amount paid is, in fact, the correct amount, nor shall any acceptance of payments be construed as a release of any claim that the City may have for further or additional sums payable.

If the City determines that Franchisee made any underpayment, and that the underpayment exceeded five percent (5%) of the amount due, Franchisee shall pay interest compounded monthly at the current rate nine percent (9%). Interest shall be due on the entire underpayment from the date on which payment was due until the date on which full payment is received. If the Franchisee disputes the City's determination of underpayment, the Franchisee shall place the disputed amount in an interest-bearing escrow account jointly controlled by the parties until final resolution. Interest shall accrue to the prevailing party.

The City, its agents, and representatives shall have the authority to inspect, review and audit all of Franchisee's books, maps, and records, directly concerning any and all amounts due under this Agreement, upon not less than thirty (30) days' prior written notice to Franchisee. Franchisee shall keep all books, maps, and records so as to accurately show the same and shall have such books, maps, and records available during normal business hours within the City's metropolitan region. Any review by the City under this subsection shall be completed within three (3) years from the date payment was due. If the City requests in writing that Franchisee provide, or cause to be provided, copies of any information reasonably within the scope of the review, and Franchisee fails within thirty (30) days of receipt of the request to provide, or cause to be provided, such information, then the three (3) year period shall be extended by one day for each day or part thereof beyond thirty (30) days that Franchisee fails to provide, or fails to cause to be provided, such requested information.

#### 3.80.190 Taxes, fees, and charges.

Nothing in this Chapter shall give the Franchisee any credit against any uniform, nondiscriminatory business tax to the extent such tax applies to revenues other than those revenues that are the subject of the franchise fee, or any ad valorem property tax now or hereafter levied against real property or personal property within the City, or against any local improvement assessments or any business tax imposed on Franchisee, or against any charges imposed upon the Franchisee's property.

Payment of the franchise fee due under this Agreement shall not exempt the Franchisee from the payment of any other license fee, permit fee, tax or charge on the business, occupation, property, activity, or income of the Franchisee that may be lawfully imposed by the City or any other taxing authority, except as may otherwise be provided in the ordinance or laws imposing such other license fee, permit fee, inspection fee, tax, or charge.

#### 3.80.200 Sale of subscriber lists prohibited.

Except as otherwise expressly permitted by law, the Franchisee shall not sell, or otherwise make available any list which identifies subscribers by name or address, to any person, agency, or entity, except as needed to maintain current services or implement new services to subscribers in connection with Franchisee's services.

#### 3.80.210 Abandonment; Removal of facilities upon expiration.

If the Franchisee goes out of business or withdraws service from the area and as a consequence refuses to renew the agreement, all rights to the use of the connection media revert to the City who may sell, lease, or otherwise use the connection media at its sole discretion. The connection media shall be left in working order and not be intentionally cut or destroyed. The City may require the media be removed from all poles and underground conduits by the former Franchisee at its own expense.

Upon expiration of this Agreement, Franchisee shall either remove its Facilities in accordance with ORS 221.470(2020) or seek City's written consent to leave its Facilities in place pursuant to AMC 3.80.150 of this Agreement.

#### 3.80.220 Reports and inspection.

With each franchise fee payment, the Franchisee shall furnish a sworn statement or declaration under oath from the Chief Finance Officer or designee, setting forth the amount and calculation of the payment. The statement shall detail the gross linear feet of cable which exists within the Albany city limits and the calculation of the franchise fee paid and shall specify the nature and amount of all exclusions and deductions from such revenue claimed by the Franchisee in calculating the franchise fee. The Franchise Administrator of the City may require the Franchisee to provide any additional information reasonably necessary for administration of the franchise fee.

#### 3.80.230 Change of law; Amendment of franchise agreement.

This Agreement may be amended from time to time to conform to any changes in the controlling federal or state law, or other changes material to this Agreement. Each party agrees to bargain in good faith with the other party concerning such proposed amendments. This Agreement also may be amended by mutual consent of the parties or their successors-in-interest. Any amendments hereto shall be by written instrument executed with the same formalities as this Agreement.

To the extent any lawful City rule, ordinance, or regulation is adopted or amended and is generally imposed on all similarly situated persons or entities, the rule, ordinance, or regulation shall apply without need for amendment of this Agreement. The City shall provide Franchisee with notice of any such change in law prior to its adoption.

#### 3.80.240 Franchise nonexclusive.

This franchise is not exclusive and shall not be construed as a limitation on the City in granting rights, privileges, and authority to other persons similar to, or different from, those granted by this Chapter, or in constructing, installing, maintaining, or operating any City-owned public utility. In the event the City enters into a franchise, permit, license, authorization, or other agreement of any kind with any other person or entity other than Franchisee to enter into the City's streets and public ways for the purpose of conducting business as a telecommunications carrier as that term is defined in ORS 133.721(8) within the City, the material provisions thereof shall be reasonably comparable to those contained herein, insofar as this is not in conflict with rules of government, in order that one operator not be granted an unfair competitive advantage over another, and to provide all parties equal protection under the law.

## 3.80.250 Insurance and bonding.

The Franchisee shall, for the purposes of carrying out the provisions of this Section, prior to commencing construction of any kind, have in full force and effect, and file and maintain during the term of the franchise a certificate of insurance evidence thereto with the Franchise Administrator, good and sufficient policies covering:

- 1. Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the State of Oregon including Employers' Liability with limits of \$1,000,000; Franchisee shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these same requirements and shall contain a Waiver of Subrogation against the City; and
- 2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits of \$5,000,000 per occurrence and \$5,000,000 general aggregate, with the aggregate on a per-project basis; and
- 3. Business Automobile Liability Insurance, for any owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles used in the performance of this agreement with combined single limits of \$5,000,000 each accident; and
- 4. Pollution Liability Insurance with limits of \$5,000,000 each incident and in the aggregate. If policy is on a "claims made" basis it must provide a 24-month tail or reporting period.
- 5. Excess or an Umbrella Insurance Policy: A combination of primary and Excess Liability or an Umbrella Insurance policy may be used to meet the required limits of insurance. Indication of use must be provided either on the certificate of insurance or within the endorsements.

The City of Albany, its officers, agents, and employees, shall be named an additional insured in said policy for losses caused in whole or in part by reason of the exercise of the rights and privileges herein granted.

Franchisee shall be financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles, self-insured retention and/or self-insurance. This insurance shall not be canceled or materially altered without thirty (30) days' written notice first being given to the City's Franchise Administrator. If the insurance is canceled or materially altered within the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall provide a replacement policy with the same terms.

Each policy, Workers' Compensation, Commercial General Liability, Business Automobile Liability, Pollution Liability, shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the City.

Prior to the commencement of any construction work by the Franchisee, the Franchisee shall file both a construction bond and a performance bond in an amount approved by the City in favor of the City and any other person who may suffer damages as a result of the breach of any duty by the Franchisee assured by such bond. Such bond as contemplated herein shall be in a form approved by the City and shall, among other matters, cover the cost of removal of any property of Franchisee. In no event shall the amount of said bond be construed to limit the liability of the Franchisee for damages. The City, at its sole option, may waive this requirement.

#### 3.80.260 Indemnification.

Subject to the limitations set forth in ORS 30.260 through ORS 30.300, the Oregon Tort Claims Act, and the Oregon Constitution each party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other, and the other's officials, agents and employees, against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, proceedings, damages, costs, reasonable attorney's fees or liabilities ("Claims") arising out of, pertaining to, or occurring through the exercise of, the rights and privileges retained by, granted to, or exercised by that party pursuant to this Agreement. Each party shall give to the other notice in writing of any such Claims within twenty (20) days of the date that party receives notice of any such Claims. Neither party shall settle, compromise, or take any action prejudicial to the other's defense of or interest in such Claims without the express written consent of the other party.

Franchisee also shall indemnify the City for any damages, claims, additional costs, or expenses assessed against or payable by the City arising out of or resulting, directly or indirectly, from Franchisee's failure to remove, adjust or relocate any of its Facilities in the Rights-of-Way in a timely manner in accordance with a relocation schedule furnished to Franchisee by the City Engineer, unless Franchisee's failure arises directly from the City's negligence or willful misconduct.

Franchisee agrees to forever indemnify the City against any claims, suits, actions, costs, and expenses, of any kind, whether direct or indirect, incurred by the City arising out of the release or threat of release of any hazardous substance as defined in ORS 465.200(16)(2020) caused by Franchisee's ownership, operation, or maintenance of a Telecommunications System in the Rights-of-Way.

## 3.80.270 Assignment, transfer, merger, lease, or mortgage.

This Agreement shall not be assigned nor any of Franchisee's Telecommunications System located in the Rights-of-Way sold, mortgaged, assigned, or otherwise transferred, without the prior written consent of the City, which will not be unreasonably withheld, except to entities that control, are controlled by, or are under common control with, the Franchisee, or in the event that only *de minimis* assets are sold, assigned, or transferred. The Franchisee shall notify the City of any proposed transfers to such entities no less than thirty (30) days in advance of such assignment or transfer. The City's granting of consent in one instance shall not render unnecessary any subsequent consent in any other instance.

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to prohibit the mortgage, pledge, or assignment of tangible assets of Franchisee's Telecommunications System for the purpose of financing the acquisition of equipment for, or the construction and operation of, Franchisee's Telecommunications System without the City's consent, but any such mortgage, pledge or assignment shall be subject to the City's other rights under this Agreement.

In determining whether the City will consent to any sale, lease, mortgage, assignment, merger or transfer of the Franchisee's Telecommunications System, the City may inquire into the technical, legal, and financial qualifications of the prospective party with respect to its ability to perform under this Agreement, and the City may condition its consent upon satisfactory results of such inquiry. Franchisee shall assist the City with any such inquiry. The City shall not unreasonably delay or withhold its consent to any such sale, lease, mortgage, assignment, transfer, or merger. In the event such transfer is approved by the Oregon Public Utilities Commission, the City will automatically consent.

No sale, lease, mortgage, assignment, transfer, or merger for which the City's consent is required may occur until the Franchisee's successor, assignee or lessee has complied with the requirements of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, providing certificates of insurance, unless the City Council waives such compliance by official act.

Within ten (10) days after execution and delivery of any instrument so consented to by the City, Franchisee shall file with the City Clerk an executed counterpart or certified copy thereof.

## 3.80.280 Rights; Forfeiture; Termination; Remedies.

In addition to any other rights set out elsewhere in this Agreement, the City reserves the right to declare a forfeiture of this Agreement and all of Franchisee's rights arising hereunder, upon the occurrence of one or more of the following:

- 1. The Franchisee violates any material provision of this Agreement and fails to cure the violation within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving notice of the violation from the City.
- 2. The Franchisee is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have practiced any fraud or deceit upon the City.
- 3. There is a final determination that Franchisee has failed, refused, neglected or is otherwise unable to obtain or maintain any permit required by any federal or state regulatory body regarding Franchisee's operation of its Telecommunications System within the City.
- 4. Franchisee fails to complete construction of any approved Facilities for more than eighteen (18) months after approval unless the City and Franchisee agree in writing to an extension for completion of such construction.
- 5. Franchisee becomes unable or unwilling to pay its debts or is adjudged a bankrupt.

For purposes of this subsection, the following provisions are, without limitation, material to this Agreement, thus allowing the City to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement:

- 1. The invalidation, failure to pay or any suspension of Franchisee's payments of franchise fees to the City under this Agreement.
- 2. Any failure by Franchisee to submit timely reports regarding the calculation of its franchise fees to the City.
- 3. Any failure by Franchisee to provide or maintain the liability insurance required under this Agreement.
- 4. Any failure by Franchisee to post or maintain any bond(s) required under this Agreement.
- 5. Any failure by Franchisee to provide copies of requested information as required in AMC 3.80.180 of this Agreement.
- 6. Any failure by Franchisee to otherwise fully comply with the requirements of this Agreement.

This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of the parties at any time.

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time for default, including but not limited to those occurrences set forth in this Section by providing not less than thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the other party, provided, however that this Agreement shall automatically terminate if Franchisee does not pay the franchise fee required under AMC 3.80.180 within one hundred and eighty (180) days of its due date and has been given not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to cure the delinquency.

Upon termination of this Agreement, the disposition of the Franchisee's property and Facilities that occupy the Rights-of-Way shall be governed by AMC 3.80.150 of this Agreement.

In addition to any other rights set out elsewhere in this franchise, the City may terminate this franchise if Franchisee violates any material provision of the franchise, including but not limited to failing to pay or any suspension of Franchisee's payments of franchise fees to the City under this franchise, failure by Franchisee to submit timely reports regarding the calculation of its gross revenues-based franchise fees to the City, failure to maintain the liability insurance and/or bonds required under this franchise, or failure to comply with all other State, Federal or local laws as set forth in this franchise, and the violation continues for 45 days after Franchisee receives notice of the violation from the City. All remedies and penalties under this franchise, including termination of the franchise, are cumulative, and the recovery or enforcement of one is not a bar to the recovery or enforcement of any other such remedy or penalty.

The remedies and penalties contained in this Chapter, including termination of the franchise, are not exclusive, and the City reserves the right to enforce the penal provisions of any ordinance or resolution and to avail itself of any and all remedies available at law or in equity. Failure to enforce shall not be construed as a waiver of a breach of any term, condition or obligation imposed upon the Franchisee by, or pursuant to, this Chapter. A specific waiver of a particular breach of any term, condition or obligation imposed upon the Franchisee by, or pursuant to, this Chapter or acceptance of any payment due shall not be waiver of any other or subsequent or future breach of the same or of any other term, condition, or obligation itself.

#### 3.80.290 Force majeure.

Neither the City nor the Franchisee shall hold the other responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond the control of the other or the other's employees and agents.

#### 3.80.300 Severability; Renegotiation.

In the event any provisions of this franchise are deemed to be void, invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall be severed from the remainder of this franchise so as not to cause the invalidity or unenforceability of the remainder of this franchise. All remaining provisions of this franchise shall then continue in full force and effect. If any provision shall be deemed invalid due to its scope and breadth, such provisions shall be deemed valid to the extent of the scope and breadth permitted by law.

If any change in federal or state law materially affects any provision of this Agreement, including any change in the laws governing the services which may be assessed franchise fees, the City and the Franchisee may mutually agree to renegotiate the terms of this Agreement. The party seeking renegotiation shall serve on the other party written notice of an offer to renegotiate. In the event the party receiving the notification request accepts the offer to renegotiate, the parties shall have ninety (90) days to conduct and complete the renegotiation.

#### 3.80.310 Public records.

Franchisee acknowledges that information submitted to the City is open to public inspection under the Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 192.311 through 192.478. Franchisee is responsible for becoming familiar with and understanding the provisions of the Oregon Public Records Law.

Franchisee may identify information, submitted to the City as confidential pursuant to ORS 192.355(4), such as trade secrets, financial records, customer information or technical information. Franchisee shall prominently mark any information for which it claims confidentiality with the word "Confidential" on each page of such information, prior to submitting such information to the City. Franchisee shall also provide a written explanation as to why such information is confidential under state or federal law. The City shall treat any information so marked as confidential until the City receives any request for disclosure of such information. City shall make reasonable efforts to provide the Franchisee notice of a request for information marked as confidential, including a copy of the request, within ten (10) business days of receiving any such request. Franchisee shall have five (5) business days within which to provide a written response to the City before the City will disclose any of the requested confidential information. The City shall retain the sole discretion to determine whether to release the requested confidential information, in accordance with applicable laws.

#### 3.80.320 Choice of law; Venue; Notice.

The laws of the State of Oregon shall govern the validity of this Agreement, its interpretation and performance, and other claims related to it. Venue for litigation shall be in the Circuit Courts in and for Linn County, Oregon.

Any notice provided for under this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing and (1) delivered personally to the other party, (2) deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, (3) sent by overnight or commercial air courier (such as Federal Express), or (4) sent by facsimile transmission.

Any such notice or communication delivered by personal delivery shall be deemed delivered and effective upon actual receipt. Any notice or communication sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, shall be deemed delivered and effective five (5) days after mailing. Any notice or communication sent by overnight courier shall be deemed delivered and effective one (1) business day after dispatch. Any notice or communication sent by facsimile transmission shall be deemed delivered when receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine. To be effective against either party, such facsimile transmission shall be confirmed by telephone notice to the other party.

#### 3.80.330 Complete agreement.

This Franchise Agreement, including any attachments and laws, rules and regulations incorporated herein or to which this Agreement is subject, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement.

#### 3.80.340 Dispute costs; Attorneys' fees.

In the event an attorney is employed to enforce the provisions of this franchise (including any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar proceedings affecting creditors' rights generally), the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred, irrespective of whether any legal proceeding is commenced. If any legal action, arbitration, or other proceeding is brought to construe, interpret, or enforce the

terms of this franchise, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred in connection therewith, both at trial and on any appeal therefrom or petitions for review thereof. Such sum shall include an amount estimated by the court as the reasonable costs and fees to be incurred by the prevailing party in collecting any monetary judgment or award or otherwise in enforcing any order, judgment or decree entered in such suit, action, or other proceeding.

## 3.80.350 Successors and assigns.

This franchise is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of all parties hereto, their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns. Franchisee, however, shall not make any assignment without written consent of the City, and any assignment made without the City's consent, shall be null and void. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, Franchisee may assign this franchise without the City's consent, (1) to an entity controlled by, under common control with, or controlling Franchisee; or (2) by mortgage, hypothecation, or other security instrument to secure indebtedness.

Section 2. Franchise effective only upon acceptance of Franchisee.

This franchise is effective on the date provided herein only upon written acceptance of its terms by an authorized representative of Franchisee.

	Passed by the Council:
	Approved by the Mayor:
	Effective Date:
	Mayor
ATTEST:	
City Clerk	



TO:

Albany City Council

VIA:

Peter Troedsson, City Manager

FROM:

Marcia Harnden, Police Chief

DATE:

September 25, 2024, for the October 9, 2024, City Council Regular Session

**SUBJECT:** Exemption from Competitive Bidding and Special Procurement for Police In-Car Video Systems Relates to Strategic Plan Theme: An Effective Government, A Safe City

## **Action Requested:**

Staff recommends city council, acting as the local contract review board, adopt the attached resolution (Attachment 1) that will:

- 1) Waive competitive bidding, adopt written findings, and approve the use of a special procurement method for the police chief to procure in-car video systems through Motorola Solutions; and
- 2) Authorize the police chief to negotiate, award, and execute class special procurement contracts for incar video systems over five years from Motorola Solutions.

#### **Discussion:**

In June 2024, the Albany Police Department (APD) deployed new Motorola Solutions body worn cameras. APD's existing in-car cameras are outdated, are no longer supported, and beginning to fail. If there is an issue with these cameras, staff cannot receive technical help to troubleshoot the problem.

Body worn cameras and in-car video systems are tools that benefit our officers and community members. This equipment promotes officer safety and efficiency and provides transparency to the community. In addition to this, videos collected can be reviewed and used as a training tool. The Motorola Solutions M500 in-car video system will seamlessly connect with the department's existing body worn cameras, which makes it easier for staff to use and collect data from. The M500 system delivers a clear, evidence-grade video from both inside and outside of the vehicle, which is imperative for evidence collection.

Existing state purchasing rules, which have been adopted by the City, allow for exceptions to competitive bidding requirements and allow purchases to be made under a "Special Procurement" with approval of the city council, acting as the local contract review board. Staff has determined this special procurement request meets all requirements of ORS 279B.085 and has provided required written findings below:

- The special procurement is unlikely to encourage favoritism in the awarding of public contracts or substantially diminish competition for public contracts. There are no vendors that can provide another in-car video system that will be compatible with the existing body worn camera system.
- The special procurement is reasonably expected to result in substantial cost savings to the contracting agency or to the public. The body worn camera system and in-car video system are manufactured by Motorola Solutions. Integrating an in-car video system from a different manufacturer would lead to increased costs for service and support, potential loss of evidence and data, and reduced productivity among staff as they would be required to learn two different software systems.
- The special procurement will promote the public interest in a manner that could not
  practicably be realized by complying with the other available methods of procurement. Because



these two systems are integrated together, it allows for greater community transparency and access to clear, evidence-grade video.

Public notice of this request will be made in accordance with state purchasing requirements, Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 279B.085 and Oregon Administrative Rules 137-047-0285. This will allow prospective suppliers an opportunity to provide input or feedback to the city council prior to the notice of award. After seven days' notice and no protests received, a contract will be negotiated to obtain contract terms that are advantageous to the City. The attached resolution authorizes the use of a special procurement process after adopting the written findings needed to satisfy City and State purchasing requirements.

## **Budget Impact:**

Each in-car video system costs \$6,528.16 and the initial purchase will be for eight cameras, equating to \$52,225.33. Funding will be from 21720701-610430.

MH:de

# OREGON

## RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALBANY CITY COUNCIL, ACTING AS THE LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD, WAIVING COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND AWARDING A CLASS SPECIAL PROCUREMENT CONTRACT TO MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS; AND AUTHORIZING THE POLICE CHIEF TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS TO PROCURE IN-CAR VIDEO SYSTEMS EQUIPMENT

WHEREAS, Albany Municipal Code 2.66.060(11), Oregon Revised Statutes 279B.085, and OAR 137-047-0285 allow the city council, acting as the local contract review board, to authorize the use of a class special procurement process for the selection of goods and services for a special purpose and for a series of related contracts; and

WHEREAS, such authorization must be based on written findings submitted by the department seeking the exception that describe the selected special procurement method to be used and the circumstances to support the use of the special procurement; and

WHEREAS, the Albany Police Department (APD) deployed new Motorola Solutions body worn cameras; and

WHEREAS, APD's existing in-car cameras are outdated, are no longer supported, and beginning to fail; and

WHEREAS, body worn cameras and in-car video systems are tools that benefit our officers and community members; and

WHEREAS, no other vendors can provide an in-car video system that will be compatible, therefore competition will not be diminished; and

WHEREAS, the in-car video system equipment, in addition to the body worn cameras, promotes officer safety and efficiency and provides transparency to the community; and

WHEREAS, a special procurement will promote the public interest in a manner that could not be realized complying with another method; and

WHEREAS, the Motorola Solutions in-car video system will seamlessly connect with the department's existing body worn cameras, which makes it easier for staff to use and collect data from and should result in substantial cost savings.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ALBANY CITY COUNCIL, ACTING AS THE LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD:

## SECTION 1. Adopts the following findings:

- The City requires a special procurement process to procure in-car video systems through Motorola Solutions. There are few vendors that can provide in-car video equipment that is compatible with the body worn cameras. Procurement of this service would be unlikely to diminish competition or encourage favoritism in awarding contracts.
- 2. Awarding a contract to Motorola Solutions will achieve department cost savings and efficiencies. The body worn camera system and in-car video system are manufactured by Motorola Solutions. Integrating an in-car video system from a different manufacturer would lead to increased costs for service and support, potential loss of evidence and data, and reduced productivity among staff as they would be required to learn two different software systems.
- 3. Motorola Solutions offers integrated body worn cameras and in-car video systems which allows for greater community transparency and access to clear, evidence-grade video.

SECTION 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Albany Municipal Code Section 2.66.060, the police chief is authorized and directed to use a class special procurement method to procure in-car video systems from Motorola Solutions; and

SECTION 3. The police chief is hereby directed to negotiate, award, and execute class special procurement contracts with Motorola Solutions over five years for in-car video systems equipment after the City has given public notice for seven days of its intent to award a contract, per OAR 137-047-0285 and ORS 279B.085.

DATED AND EFFECTIVE THIS 9TH DAY OF OCTOBER 2024.

	_	M	ayor
TTEST:		1V1	ayoi
TILOT.			
City Clerk			



TO:

Albany City Council

VIA:

Peter Troedsson, City Manager

FROM:

Kinzi McIntosh, Central Services Support Specialist // ///

DATE:

September 24, 2024, for the October 9, 2024, City Council Meeting

\$ 10/2

**SUBJECT:** Resignations from Citizen Advisory Groups

Relates to Strategic Plan theme: An Effective Government

## **Action Requested:**

Council acceptance of the following resignations from the citizen advisory groups:

#### Library Board

• Karen Messer (position appointed by Councilor McGhee; current term ends 6/30/2025)

#### **Public Safety**

Pat Kidd (position appointed by Councilor Smith; current term ends 12/31/25)

#### **Discussion:**

Karen Messer has notified the City of her resignation from the Library Board. Councilor McGhee's appointment to fill this vacancy has been submitted as a separate memo.

Pat Kidd has notified the City of her resignation from the Public Safety Commission. Councilor Smith's appointment to fill this vacancy will be submitted at a subsequent meeting.

# **Budget Impact:**

None.

KM

Attachment

## McIntosh, Kinzi

Subject:

FW: Library Board

From:

Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2024 2:28 PM

Ikenouye, Eric <<u>Eric.Ikenouye@albanyoregon.gov</u>>; Schuh,

Elise < Elise. Schuh@albanyoregon.gov >

Subject: Library Board

[WARNING! This email came from outside our organization. Do NOT click unknown attachments or links in email.]

Greetings,

I need to resign from the APL library board because I no longer live in the Ward in Albany I was representing.

Thank you for the experience.

Karen Messer

DISCLAIMER: This email may be considered a public record of the City of Albany and subject to the State of Oregon Retention Schedule. This email also may be subject to public disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law. This email, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy all copies of the original message.



TO: Albany City Council

VIA: Peter Troedsson, City Manager

FROM: Kinzi McIntosh, Central Services Support Specialist

DATE: September 24, 2024, for the October 9, 2024, City Council Meeting

**SUBJECT:** Appointment to Citizen Advisory Groups

Relates to Strategic Plan theme: An Effective Government

## **Action Requested:**

Council ratification of the following appointment to the Library Board:

Scott Kniefel, Ward 1 (Councilor McGhee's appointment to fill a vacancy; term expires 6/30/25)

## **Discussion:**

Mayor and councilor appointments for any remaining vacancies on the City's citizen advisory groups will be submitted for approval at subsequent city council meetings.

## **Budget Impact:**

None.

KM

Attachment



Applying To Library Board Received June 3, 2024

Name Scott Kniefel

In City Limits? Yes (Ward 1)

currently employed?

Self-employed (Budget Blinds)

List current or most recent occupation, business, trade, profession, or area of study:

I have been a business owner for a year. Before that I was a high school English Teacher for 27 years

Please summarize what qualifications and experience you have that would apply to this position:

I have a passion for literacy and education, a commitment to community service, strong communication skills, the ability to collaborate with diverse stakeholders.

List community/civic activities in which you are or have been active:

Member of the National Council of English Teachers Assistant Scoutmaster

How many Library Board meetings have you attended/viewed?

#### None

What is your understanding of the role of a Library Board member and what contributions do you hope to make to the board?

A library board member plays a crucial role in overseeing the operation and direction of the library. A board member is responsible for setting library policies, advocating for the library's needs within the community, approving budgets, hiring and evaluating the library director, and ensuring the library meets the needs of its patrons.

When did you last visit the Albany Public Library? Tell us about your experience during that visit.

About two years ago. My daughter and I went to our neighborhood library to check out books for summer reading.

What role does the Albany Public Library play in making Albany a livable community?

I see that Albany libraries are important for three main reasons:

Access to Information: Libraries provide access to a wide range of resources, including books, digital materials, databases, and more. This access is crucial for promoting literacy and education.

Equal Access: Libraries ensure that everyone, regardless of socioeconomic status, has access to information and resources. They bridge the digital divide by offering computers and internet access to

those who may not have them at home.

Support for Education: Libraries support formal education by providing resources for students and educators. They offer homework help, research assistance, and access to educational programs and workshops.

Cultural Preservation: Libraries preserve and promote cultural heritage by collecting and archiving materials relevant to the community's history.

How can the Library Board improve policies and services offered by the Albany Public Library?

By making sure that the library is responsive to the needs of the community while keeping to the ideals as an important repository of information that should not be censored.

Have you reviewed the meeting schedule for this board and can you commit to regular meeting attendance?

#### Yes

I have read and understand the following: Members receive notice of meetings via email. Agendas and communications regarding the group are sent out via email. When unable to attend in person, meetings may be attended virtually via Zoom Videoconferencing. Absenteeism or non-preparation for meetings could result in removal.

#### Yes

If there are currently no vacancies for this board, would you like your application kept on file for the remainder of this recruitment period?

#### Yes

How did you hear about this opportunity? If social media, please specify.

#### Facebook





#### **MINUTES**

Monday, September 23, 2024 Work Session Council Chambers, City Hall

Approved: DRAFT

Call to Order 4:00 p.m.

Mayor Alex Johnson II called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

Roll Call

Councilors present: Mayor Alex Johnson II and Councilors Steph Newton-Azorr, Matilda Novak,

Jackie Montague, Ray Kopczynski, Ramycia McGhee, and Marilyn Smith

Councilors absent: None

Business from the Public 4:00 p.m

Laura DuBose shared concerns and personal experiences with criminal activity related to an alleyway near her home on Willamette Ave SE. DuBose requested the city close or restrict access to the alleyway and discuss the item. DuBose submitted written testimony\* and additional testimony from James and Patty Howell\* and Chastain DuBose\* concerning that same alleyway.

Terry Mann spoke about an easement and crossing at Knox Butte.

Mike Quinn spoke about the proposed street maintenance fee and asked council to reconsider implementing a fee and instead implement a \$0.06 gas tax. Quinn also spoke about the city owned lots that were formerly Marvin's Garden and suggested that they be used for housing projects.

Bill Van Vleet, owner of Van Vleet meat and food service, said that his company would be interested in purchasing the city owned lots that were formerly Marvin's Garden. At the request of Johnson II, City Attorney Sean Kidd spoke about the process for the city to sell city-owned land.

Michael Thomson spoke in opposition to the street maintenance fee ordinance scheduled for the council meeting on September 25, 2024.

Granting public utility easement and dedicating right-of-way on South Albany Park property
Parks and Recreation Director Kim Lyddane spoke about the item. Responding to a question from Councilor Jackie Montague, Lyddane said the requested action does not have an impact on the city's ownership of the 26 acres of South Albany Park.

Public Works Director and Acting City Manager Chris Bailey answered questions from Councilor Matilda Novak about the City's water rights. Novak requested additional, written information regarding the city's water rights.

Business from the council 4:21 p.m.

Novak said a member of the public told her that the City has \$8.4 million available for discretionary use from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and asked that the money be used for streets. Montague and Johnson II responded to comments from Thomson about the street maintenance fee.

Councilor Ramycia McGhee shared constituent concerns about wild turkeys and asked for the council to consider a feeding ordinances to regulate the turkeys.

<u>City Manager report</u> 4:34 p.m.

Bailey said the council will discuss the alleyway mentioned by DuBose and the disposition of the property that was formerly Marvin's Garden at future meetings. Bailey clarified that the ordinance under consideration at the September 25, 2024, council meeting establishes the council's legal authority to create a street maintenance fee and does not create the methodology or set the rate of any fee. Responding to a request from Novak, Bailey said she would distribute the full public opinion report compiled by consultants. Bailey said there is an effort to reschedule the September 30, 2024, work session to allow for councilors to attend the Downtown Association awards event.

albanyoregon.gov/council



## **ADJOURNMENT**

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:41 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Reviewed by,

Gabe Shepherd Peter Troedsson
Deputy City Clerk City Manager

<sup>\*</sup>Documents discussed at the meeting that are not in the agenda packet are archived in the record. Documents from staff are posted to the website after the meeting. Documents submitted by the public are available by emailing <a href="mailto:cityclerk@albanyoregon.gov">cityclerk@albanyoregon.gov</a>.